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City of Morristown

Incorporated 1855

December 17, 2012

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Governing Council, and Citizens of the City of
Morristown:

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the
close of each year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that
requirement, we hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of
Morristown for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012,

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City of
Morristown. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of the City of Morristown has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation
of the City of Morristown’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of
internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Morristown’s comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management,
we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and
reliable in all material respects,

The City of Morristown’s financial statements have been audited by Craine, Thompson, and
Jones, PC, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was
to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Morristown for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financjal statement presentation. The independent
anditor conchuded, based upon the audit, that there was a reascnable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the City of Morristown’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report
is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Morristown was part of a
broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor




agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to
report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited
government’s internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal
awards. These reports are available in the compliance report section of this CAFR.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative infroduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City of Morristown’s MD&A can be found immediately following the

repott of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The City of Morristown was incorporated in 1855 and operates under a council-administrator
form of government. It is located between two major Tennessee Valley Authority lakes
approximately 40 miles northeast of Knoxville on Interstate-81 and approximately 60 miles
southwest of the Tri-Cities area on the same highway. The City currently occupies a land area of
approximately 22 square miles and serves a population of approximately 25,000, The City is
authorized by state statues to levy a property tax on both real and personal properties located
within its boundaries. It is also empowered by state statute to extend its corporate limits by
annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the Couneil.

Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in the Mayor and Council members consisting
of the mayor and six other members. The Council is responsible, among other things, for
passing ordinances, resolutions, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring the City
Administrator, City Attorney, Police Chief, and Fire Chicf. The City’s Administrator is
responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the Council, for overseeing the day-
to-day operations of the City and for appointing the heads of various departments,

The City of Morristown provides a full range of services, including police, fire, street
construction and maintenance, planning and zoning, parks and recreation, cultural events and
general administrative services. In addition, water, electric and sewer service and solid waste
collection are provided under an Enterprise fund concept with user charges established by the
Council to ensure adequate coverage of operating expenses and payments on outstanding debt.

The annual budget scrves as the foundation for the City of Morristown’s financial planning and
control. All departments of the City of Morristown are required to submit requests for
appropriation to the City Administrator. The City Administrator uses these requests as the
starting point for developing a proposed budget. The City Administrator then presents this
proposed budget to the Council for review by May 15. The Council is required to hold a public
hearing on the proposed budget and to adopt 2 final budget no later than June 30, the close of the
City of Motristown’s fiscal year. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and
department. The City Administrator may make transfers of appropriations within a department.
Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this rcport. The general fund comparison is
presented on page 24 as part of the basic financial statements for the City’s fund.



Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of
Morristown operates,

Local economy

The economy continues to have an impact on every segment of Morristown’s largest taxpayers,
especially the automotive industry., Morristown has many manufacturers that are tied to this
industry. They produce automotive products for many different type of brands but principally
Toyota.

Manufacturing continues to make up the majority of property tax assessments for the City of
Motristown. The breakdown between commercial and residential is 69% and 31% respectively.

Sales Tax

As with last year, the overall economic health of the City of Morristown reflects the slow growth
with the nationwide cconomy. In FY 2012 the city experienced a 6.5% increase in the local
option sales tax.

Major Initiatives

Two years ago, three of our manufacturers announced plans of expanding and adding additional
100 jobs to the local economy. These projects are still on schedule and are nearing completion.

The City of Morristown and the Industrial Development Board continue to recruit new industry
and support expansion of our existing industry. One main effort is the acquisition of property for
the East Tennessee Progress Center to provide available land for possible expansion for business

recruiting,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Morristown, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Morristown, Tennessee, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Morristown, Tennessee’s,
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did
not audit the financial statements of Morristown Utility Commission, which represent 62 percent, 79 percent, and
88 percent, respectively, of the assels, net assets, and revenues of the business-type activities. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Morristown Utility Commission, is based on the report of the other
auditors. = o

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial stalements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to previously
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Morristown,
Tennessee, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund and solid waste fund for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 8 through 17 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic. or historical context. We and the other auditors have applied -
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

JAMES W. CRAINE, CPA THOMAS M. JONES, CPA
GLENN B. THOMPSON, CPA, CFP, PFS HiraM H. JONES, CPA

MiRA J. CRAINE, CPA TERRY M. WINSTEAD, CPA




Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Morristown, Tennessee's financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, statistical section, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financiat statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the combining and individual
nonmaijor fund financial statements and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are faitly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

&W/ J/wm,ww %QW, e

Morristown, Tennessee
November 25, 2012



Management’s Discussion & Analysis

As management of the City of Morristown, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012. Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that is furnished in the letter of transmittal, which can be found on page 1 of this report.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City of Morristown exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by approximately $149.9 million (net assets), an increase of nearly $4.4 million during FY
2012. Of this amount, $45.7 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

* As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Morristown’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of just over $23.1 million. An increase of almost $15.6 million
from the prior year.

o The City of Morristown’s fotal long-term debt increased by a net amount of $32,156,168 during
the current fiscal year. The General Fund’s long-term debt increased by a net amount of
$2,409,630. The Sewer Fund’s debt increased by a net amount of $25,955,072. The Storm Water
Fund’s debt increased by a net amount of $4,995,710. The Sanitation Fund’s debt increased by a
net amount of $15,710.

¢ Prior period adjustments were necessary ito correct assets that were presented due to the
implementation of a fixed assets program.

¢ The City of Morristown’s General Fund reported a fund balance of $23,104,583 on June 30,
2012,

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the City of Morristown’s financial statements.
The basic financial statements consist of three parts: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund
financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements., The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Morristown’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Morristown’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net gssets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Morristown is improving
or deteriorating,

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxed and earned but unused vacation leave).




Both the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Morristown that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Morristown include general
government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, economic development, and culture and
recreation. The business-type activities include the electric, water, storm water, broadband and sewer
systems. Of the business-type activities, the Morristown Utilities Commission is responsible for water,
electric and broadband. The Morristown Utilities Commission is an administrative unit of the City and
therefore has been included as a business-type activity of the primary government. The Morristown
Utilities Commission issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report and information from that
report is used in this report. Readers should consult the Morristown Utility Commission’s Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report for more detailed information on their finances.

The government-wide financial statements can be found beginning on page 16 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Morristown, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Morristown can be divided into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-ferm
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for govermmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Morristown maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and the solid waste fund, both of which
are considered to be major funds, Data from the other governmental fund are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for cach of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided
in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this repoit,

The City of Morristown adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found beginning on page 18 of this report.




Proprietary funds. The City of Morristown mainfains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements, The City of Morristown uses enterprise funds to account for its water, sewer, storm
water, broadband and electric systems.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for sewer, water,
electric and broadband systems, all of which are considered to be major funds of the City of Morristown.
The storm water system is not considered to be a major fund, however it is presented separately in the
proprietary fund financial statements because it is the only other proprietary fund.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on page 44 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on page 50 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Motristown’s progress in
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the government’s financial

position. In the case of the City of Morristown, assets exceeded liabilities by almost $149.9 million at the
close of the most recent fiscal year. Net assets increased by $4.4 million for the period.

Governmental activities Business-type activities Tatal
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2001
Current and other assets $34,861,172 $29,932.825 $ 82,446,911 $44,088,521 $117,308,083 $ 74,021,346
Capital assets 49,106,084 51,990,173 148,372,402 143,783,077 197,478,486 195,773,250
Total assets 83,967,256 81,922 998 230,819,313 187,871,598 314,786,569 269,794,596
Long-term labilities
outstanding 22,151,588 19,711,659 96,378,773 67,213,159 118,530,361 86,924,818
Other liabilities 12,186,316 11,908,968 34,122,468 25,443,270 46,308,784 37,352,238
Total liabilities 34,337,904 31,620,627 130,501,241 92,656,429 164,839,145 124,277,056
Net asseis:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 26,055,799 31,753,875 76,792,135 72,923,445 102,847,934 104,677,320
Restricted 1,369,307 3,002 1,369,307 3,002
Assigned 0 12,641,353
Unrestricted 22,204,246 5,904,141 23,525,937 22,291,724 45,730,183 28,195,865
Total Net assets $49,629,352 $50,302,371 $ 100,318,072 $95,215,169 $ 149,947,424 $145,517,540




By far the largest portion of the City of Morristown’s net assets (71%) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., fand, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that is still outstanding. The City of Morristown uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Morristown’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed
to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used
to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City of Morristown’s net assets (less than 1%) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used, The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets
($45,730,183) may be used to meet Morristown’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The general fund had an unassigned fund balance of $10,069,059 on June 30, 2012.

City of Morristown's Changes in Net Assets
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 201t
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 2,751,255 § 2,736,480 $ 99,419,215  $100,274,450 $102,17047¢  $£103,010,930
Operating grants &
contributions 700,118 1,091,876 2,067,523 - 2,767,641 1,091,876
Capital grants &
contributions - - 165,384 847,793 165,384 847,793
General revenues: - -
Properiy taxes 9,135,643 9,138,037 - - 9,135,643 9,138,037
Sales tax 10,236,619 9,611,440 - - 10,236,619 9,611,440
Intergovemmental 4,777,887 5,112,921 - - 4,777,887 5,112,921
Other 4,476,612 3,643,308 304,325 86,495 4,780,937 3,729,803
Total revenues ¥ 32078,134 | 31,334,062 101,956,447 | 101,208,738 134,034,581 132,542,800
Expenses:
General govermment 4,267,622 3,518,056 - - 4,267,622 3,518,056
Public safety 3,775,987 13,528,045 - - 13,775,987 13,528,045
Public works 9,939,809 8,161,772 - - 9,939,809 8,161,772
Economic development 392,784 1,805,109 - - 392,784 1,805,109
Parks & recreation 1,793,705 1,904,129 - - 1,793,705 1,904,129
Civic support 1,638,926 663,498 - - 1,638,926 663,498
Transportation - - - - - -
Retirce Health Insurance 309,530 439,304 - - 309,530 439,304
Interest on long-term debt 289,717 283,153 . - 289,717 283,153
Water - - 5,854,982 5,840,612 5,854,982 5,840,612
Sewer - - 9,632,557 8,439,027 9,632,557 8,439,027
Storm water - - 658,713 562,423 658,713 562,423
Electic - - 71,977,895 73,073,525 71,977,895 73,073,525
Telecom - - 6,963,308 6,321,905 6,963,308 6,321,905
Total expenses 32,408,080 30,303,066 95,087,455 94,237,492 | 127,495,535 | 124,540,558
Increase (decrease) in net
asseis before transfers (329,946) 1,030,996 6,868,992 6,971,246 6,539,046 8,002,242
Transfers 1,532,378 1,454,897 (1,532,378) (1,454,587 - 310
Increase (decrease) in net
assels £,202,432 2,485,893 5,336,614 5,516,659 6,539,046 8,002,552
Net assets - Juiy 1, 2010 50,302,371 47,701,533 95,215,326 89,582,791 145,517,697 137,284,324
Prior period adjustment (1,875,451) 114,945 (233,868) 115,719 (2,109,319) 230,664
Net assets - June 30, 2011 549,629,352 $50,302,371 $100,318,072 $ 095,215,169 $149,947,424 $145,517,540
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The graph below presents the major sources of revenue for governmental activities.
Revenues by Source-Governmental Activities

Intergovernmental
15% Property Taxes

28%

Operating
grants &
contributions

2%

Local Sales Tax
32%

Charges for services
9% Other

14%

The property tax continues to be a stable revenue source for the City, For FY 2012 collections decreased
$2,394 from FY 2011.

Intergovernmental revenues received by the City can vary when there are projects managed by the City
but paid for primarily by other entities, such as the State of Tennessee or federal government,

I1




Expenses and Program Revenues for Business-Type Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Morristown uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements,

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Morristown’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the City of Morristown’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end
of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Morristown’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $23,752,521 an increase of $15,847,322.

The general fund’s fund balance increased $15,660,504. The increase was due to a $3.75 million capital
outlay note that was issued for general fund and sanitation fund, The general fund’s portion was $3.5
million which was used for street paving.

The solid waste fund is used to account for the City’s sanitation and recycling operations. The solid
waste fund’s operations are funded by user fees and an allocation from the general fund. The debt service
paid by the solid waste fund is funded entirely by the Morristown/Hamblen County Solid Waste
Authority. The City receives an amount equal to the annual debt service expenditures each year which
2012 was the final payment. The debt was issued by the City and uftimately the City is responsible for its
repayment should the Morristown/Hamblen County Solid Waste Authority unable to meet the obligation,
The City also borrowed $250,000 in FY 2012 for the purchase of two sanitation trucks.

12




Proprietary Funds, The City of Morristown’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The net assets of the City’s sewer fund decreased $626,802 million for FY 2012. This was due primarily
to sewer improvements and investment in capital assets. The storm water system net assets gain of
$937,407. This was due to positive income and investment in net assets. 'The majority of the investment
of capital assets was due a bond issue of $31,000,000 during 2012. The breakdown is $26 million for
Sewer and $5 million for Storm Water, Both will be used to make repairs and enhance the infrastructure
for both utilities. The Sewer portion also is in response to the TDEC commissioner’s order that was
discussed in last year’s audit. The funding of the debt issue is from the current rate structure for both
utilities,

Unrestricted net assets of the Morristown Utility Commission, which operates electric, water, and
Broadband service for the City, at the end of the year, amounted to $19,039,619, an increase of $977,269.
The Morristown Utility Commission debt decreased by $1,629,838. For a more thorough discussion of
the Morristown Utility Commission’s finances readers should consult the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report issued by the Commission for FY 2012.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget for FY 2012 can be briefly
summarized as follows: ‘

$215,095 in increases allocated to the Police Department for equipment funded by grants.
$134,349 in increases allocated to the Fire Department for equipment funded by grants and
various operation needs,
$175,000 in increases allocated to Street Repairs & Maintenance.

¢ $461,000 in increases allocated for Fast Track Grants issued by the State of Tennessee.

The increases were funded from grants and grant sources, fund balance, and bond proceeds.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Morristown’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business
type activities as of June 30, 2012, amounts to $ 49.1 million and $ 148.3 million, respectively (net of
accumuliated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements
other than buildings, equipment, infrastructure and consfruction in progress.
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City of Morristown's Capital Assets
{net of depreciation)
Governmental Activitics Business-T'ype Activitics Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Land 7,658,184 7,658,184 2,284,839 2,272,839 9,943,023 9.931,023
Buildings 11,914,940 12,321,007 - - 11,914,940 12,321,007
Hnprovements other than

buildings 1,280,954 1,771,213 - - 1,280,954 1,771,213
Machinery & equipment 1,810,081 2,763,558 - - 1,810,081 2,763,558
Infrastructure 26,441,925 27476211 - - 26,441,925 27476211
Ittty plant and

equipment - - 140,348,069 133,221,994 140,348,069 133,221,994
Conslruction i progress - - 5,739,494 8,288,244 5,739,494 8,288,244

¥ Ld ¥ L
‘Fotal 49,106,084 51,990,173 148,372,402 143,783,077 197,478,480 195,773,250

Additional information on the City of Morristown’s capital assets can be found on page 59 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Morristown had total bonded debt
outstanding of $ 97.8 million; of this amount $22.6 million comprises net direct debt of governmental
activities. The remainder of the City of Morristown’s debt represents bonds secured by specified revenue
sources and the full faith and credit of the government,

The City continues to rely heavily on variable rate debt, with $63.3 of the total outstanding debt in a fully
variable rated product. The Broadband system’s outstanding debt of $4,717,345 consists entirely of a
variable rate product.

The following is a brief summary of the City’s long-term debt by fund:
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City of Morristown's Long-Term Debt
Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Reductions June 30, 2012

Governmental activities

General fund $ 20236326 % - 3 1,340370 3 18,895,956

Solid waste fund 388,619 - 234,290 § 154,329
Total governmental activities 20,624,945 - 1,574,660 19,050,285
Business-type activities

Sewer system 29,338,781 27,869,365 1,914,313 55,293,833

Storm water system 78,939 5,000,000 2,860 5,076,079

Electic system 16973914 - 482,203 16,491,711

Water system 16,852,374 393,201 924,655 16,321,010

Telecom system 4,825,142 - 107,797 4,717,345
Total business-type activitics 68,069,150 33,262,656 3431828 97,899,978
Total Debt $ 88,694,005 §$ 33262656 § 5006488 $ 116,950,263

Additional information on the City of Morristown’s long-term debt can be found on page 70 of this
report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e The unemployment rate for the City of Morristown was 13.53% for June 2012, which is an
increase from a rate of 1.43% a year ago. The state’s average unemployment rate was 8.1% and
the national rate was 8.2%.

s Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.

s Taxable sales increased $625,179 in FY 2012 when compared to FY 201 1.

s Sewer revenues increased 1,324,741 in FY 2012 when compared to FY 201 1.

All of these factors were considered in the preparation and continual monitoring of the City of
Morristown’s budget for the FY 2013.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Morristown’s finances for
all those with an interest in the government’s finances, Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for addition financial information should be addressed fo the City of
Morristown, Administrative Services Director, P.O. Box 1499, Morristown, Tennessee 37816-1499. The
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and other information about the City may be found on the City’s
website www.mymorristown.com, as part of our continuing usage of advancing fechnology and e-
commerce.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Statement of Net Assefs
June 30, 2012

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Tofal
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,121,884 $ 24 982,759 § 35,104,643
Receivables {net of allowance
for uncollectibles) 11,752,111 10,156,610 21,908,721
Inventories 36,124 1,546,592 1,582,716
Accrual for unbilled revenue 56,012 2,496,967 2,552,979
Internat balances 1,165,519 7,818,754 -
Discounted energy units 57,737 57,737
Other current assets 33,182 33,182
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 34,170,448 34,170,448
Capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation):
Land 7,658,184 2,284,839 9,843,023
Buildings 11,914,940 11,914,940
Improvements 1,280,954 1,280,954
Equipment 1,810,081 1,810,081
Infrastructure 26,441,925 26,441,925
Utility pfant and equipment - 140,348,069 140,348,069
Consfruction in progress - 5,739,494 5,739,494
Real estate-non-operating 11,728,522 11,729,522
Other assets - 594,388 594,388
Plant acquisition adjustments 589,474 589,474
Total assets 83,967,256 230,819,313 305,802,206
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabillties
Accounts payable 247,389 12,808,202 13,155,591
Accrued expenditures and other current liabilities 100,405 2,773,672 2,874,077
Due to others - bonds and deposits 41,285 41,295
Internal balances - 8,984,273 -
Customer deposits 3,420,112 3,429,112
Unearned revenue 9,862,266 482,042 10,344,308
General bonded debt
Due within one year 1,675,895 3,601,165 5,277,060
Due in more than one year 21,374,390 94,198,813 115,573,203
Premium on bonds payable 1,647,714 1,547,714
Capital lease obligation
Due within one year 3,759 3,759
Due in more than one year -
Contractual liability 2,120,233 2,120,233
Accrued post retirement benefit obligation 392,529 392,529
Compensated absences:
Estimated to be paid within one year 250,066 259,066
Estimated to be pald after one year 777,198 59,727 836,925
Total liabilities O3, 130,507,241 Bb4,
Net assets
Invested in operaling capital assets
net of related debt 26,055,799 76,792,135 102,847,934
Restricted for:
Community Development 95,059 95,059
Narcotics 11,204 11,294
Gas Tax 1,262,854 1,262,954
Unrestricted{deficif) 22,204,246 23,525,937 45,730,183
Tolat net assets $ 49,629,352 $ 100,318,072 $ 149,947,424

Amounts in the "Total" column have been adjusted to reflect the eliminations of internal balances and will not cross-foot.

The notes to financial statements are an inlegral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2012
Total
Solid Waste NonMajor Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8793892 § 413,841 $ 60,775 $ 9,268,508
Receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectibies) 12,550,105 107,310 81,432 12,738,547
Interfund loans recsivable -current 175,163 - - 175,163
Inventories 36,124 - - 36,124
Real estate - non-cperating 11,728,622 11,728,522
Accrued Unbilled Revenus 56,012 56,012
Total assels $ 33,284,806 $ 577,163 $ 141,907 $ 34,003,876
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 211,811 $ 35578 &% - 3 247,380
Due {o others-bonds 41,295 - - 41,295
Accrued expendilures and other current liabilities 100,405 - - 100,405
Unearned revenue 0,826,712 - 35,654 9,862,266
Total liabilities 10,180,223 35,578 35,654 10,251,355
Fund balances:
Nonspendable 11,765,646 14,765,646
Restricted
Narcotics - - 11,284 11,294
Community Development - 85,059 95,059
Gas Tax 1,262,954 1,262,954
Commitied
Encumbrances 3,072 3,072
Assigned
Diversity Task Force 2,862 - 2,852
Sidewalks - 1,000 - 1,000
Solid Waste 541,585 541,585
Unassigned 10,069,059 - - 10,069,059
Total equity 23,104,583 541,585 106,353 23,752,521
Total liabilities and fund equity $ 33284808 $ 577,183 $ 141,907

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental
activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in funds. 49,106,084
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
in the funds. {24,086,549)
Internal service funds are used by management {o charge the
costs of certain activities, such as insurance, to individual
funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund
are included in governmental activities in the statement of
net assels. 857,296

Net assets of governmental activities $ 49,629,352

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenuss,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of aclivities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds $ 4,389,745

Governmental funds report capitai outiays as expenditures. In the
government-wide financial statements, capital asset additions are reported
as additions to capital assets. 1,361,433

In the government-wide financial statements, certain capital assets are
depreciated. In the governmental basis financial statements, capital assets
are charged to expenditures, therefore, depreciation is not taken. {2,981,392)

Issuance of long-term debt (4,000,000)

The payment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in the
governmental funds financial statements, but is considered as a reduction
in debt in the city-wide financial statements. 1,574,629

The payment of bond issue expense is considered an expenditure in the
governmental financial stalements, whereas, in the city-wide financial
statements, it is considered an asset and is amortized. 57,337

Compensated absences are considered expenditures when paid on the
governmental fund basis, but in the government-wide financial statements
are considered expenses as incurred. (66,617}

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as insurance, to individual funds. The net revenue (expense)
of the internal service fund is reporied with governmental activities. 857,206

Government funds financial statements report property taxes collected within
60 days after the close of the fiscal year as revenue under the modified

accrual basis, whereas, the government-wide financial statements reported
these revenues on the accrual basis. -

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 1,202,432

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budgel Budget Actual {unfavorahie}
Local Taxes:
Property taxes-current $8,650,000 $8,648,351 $ 8,486,069 $ (162,292)
Property taxes-prior 220,000 220,060 198,464 {21,536)
Penalty and Interest 85,000 201,340 201,340 -
Property taxes-delinguent 120,000 225,000 224 953 {47}
In liewftax equivalent 880,600 880,000 24,828 (855,174}
Cable franchise tax 200,000 315,400 315,360 {40}
Gas franchise tax 400,000 400,000 283,308 {116,892}
Local option sales tax 9,301,450 9,743,105 10,236,619 493,514
Wholesale beer tax 800,000 925,000 1,006,603 81,603
Wholesale liquor tax 240,000 357,500 357,455 {45)
Business & gross receipts tax 750,080 749,938 1,000,937 250,939
Hete! and Motel tax 380,000 380,000 533,149 153,149
Total local taxes 22,026,450 23,045,694 22,869,163 {176.531)
Licenses and permits;
Beer permits 15,000 2,310 14,574 12,264
Bidg, Elec, & Plumbing Permit - - 3,265 3,265
Building permits - 30,000 116,074 86,074
Etectrical permits 125,000 35,000 15,343 (19,657}
Plumbing permils - 30,000 14,368 (15,635)
Gas permits - 30,000 2,985 {27,015}
BDevelopmeant fees 5,000 5,000 3,515 {1,485}
Sidawalks - - 3,500 3,500
Sign Permits - . 2,425 2425
Farmers Market Permit 1,000 1,000 3,300 2,300
Server permits 8.000 7,750 11,875 4,125
Totat licenses and permits 154,000 141,060 191,221 50,1614
Intergovernmental Revenue:
USDA Summer Feeding Program 90,000 95,300 95,251 (49)
ARRA Grants - 165,100 165,087 {13}
TVA Gross Receipis Tax 165,840 165,840 336,637 170,797
State Sales Tax 1,668,200 1,845,600 1,866,037 20,437
Telecommunication Sales Tax 2,300 2,300 1,627 {673)
State income Tax 155,000 155,000 180,710 5,710
State Beer Tax 12,000 12,000 14,303 2303
State Gasoline Tax 565,000 565,000 750,936 185,936
State PTS Tax 55,400 55,400 59,442 4,042
Dept of Transportaticn Proj Rey - - 75,369 75,389
Dept. of Transportation Airport Grants 776,000 776,000 7,200 (768,800)
Other slate revenue - - 60,368 60,368
C.O.P.S. Grant 187,434 187,434 96,647 (20,787}
State Excise Tax 50,000 50,000 5,865 {43,145}
C.0.P.S. More Grant - 53,800 53,701 {99}
Adtport maintenance grant - 12,200 12,108 {92}
Public Safety Insarvice - - 98,321 96,321
Fire Depanrtiment Grants - 15,670 - {15,570}
Dept. of Justice Grants - 102,120 102,113 {7}
Project Safe neighborhoods - 2,182 5,040 2,848
Police Dept. Grants & Reimbursemenis - 23,140 23,135 (5}
Public Werks Reimbursemenis - - 258 258
TIIP Grants - - - -
Fast track grant - 83,800 380,183 296,363
Tiger Grant - 20,000 - {90,000)
Governor Highway Safety Grant - 26,004 25,946 (58)
Community Dev Block Grant - - - -
Greenway grant and reimbursement - 85,300 85,237 {63)
OGCEDTF Reimbursement - 1,484 177 £1,307)
Event Donalions - - 6,541 6,541
Other County Revenue 280,000 288,000 240,000 (56,000)
Other Reimbursements - 365,000 - {365,000)
Total intergovernmental revenue 4,007,174 5,331,584 4,827 228 {504,358)

Fhe notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

General Fund

Statement of Revenue , Expanditures, and Ghanges

I Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Fines and users fees:
Recrealional fees
City court fines and costs
Sex offender registry
DU fines
Totlals fines and users feos

Cther revenue:
Donations to parks and rec
Donations
Donations - Police
Legacy Trees
Fire Department Donations
Police Repods
Docview Reports
Police Dept Vehicle Storage
Fire Dept. Charge for Servicas
Interest on invesimenis
Ievantory gain or foss
Driver License Verifieation
Rental of City property
Insurance Reimbursements
Workers Compensation Refunds
Debt Service Reimbursements
Sale of City property
Miscellaneous
Fund Balance
Prior Year Enctmbrance

Total other ravenue

Total Revenue

Expenditures:

General government:

hMayor and City Council:
Wages & salaries
Christmas bonus & longevily
FICA
bedicare
Employae Health Insurance
Workers Compensation Insurance
Employes education and training
Education Seminars & Training
Mailing
Postal service
Printing Services
Legal Notices
Automotive parts
Memberships and fees
Adveartising
Vehicle Expense
Telephone Services
Subscriptions & Books
Travel
Other Contracted Services
Office supplies & Materials
Other supplies & materials
Insurance
Equipment rentalflease
Council contingency

Total Mayor and City Councit

City Administrator:
Wages & salaries

Tha notes to financial statements are an integrat part of this statement.

Variance
Originat Final Favorable

Budget Budget Actual {unfavorable}
145,000 145,000 130,440 {14,560
1,100,000 1.099,670 947,370 (152,200}
3,000 3,000 3,780 780
84,000 84,800 68,119 {15,881}
1,332,000 1,331,570 1,148,769 (181,861}
- 11,400 19,634 8,234

- - 3,418 3,418

- - 1,264 1,284

- - 210 210

- - 853 853

- - 2,038 2,038

- - 531 531

- - 380 380

- - 3,665 3,685

5,293 18,053 27,311 9,258

- - 5 5

- - 33 33
112,000 112,000 176,518 64,518
- - 110,072 110,072

- - 11,710 11,710

- - 4,846 4,846

- - 4,761 4,701
38,008 38,000 27,591 {10,409)
£00.000 500,000 - {500,000}
- 42,400 - {42,400
655,283 721,882 394,800 {327,062)
28,174,917 30,571,770 28,432,121 (1,139,649}
37,200 37,700 37,627 73
1,022 1,022 641 381
- - 2,815 (2,615)
- - 421 @21

. 72,854 86,173 5,681
- - 5,719 {5,719}
72,854 - - -
- - 490 {40)

2,924 - - -
200 3,124 173 2,951
2,500 2,500 1,088 1,411
- - 2,485 (2,465)

1,503 - - -
18,000 18,000 14,502 3,498

- 1,500 - 1,500
- - 100 {100)
. - 51 {51)
200 280 327 {127y
15,000 15,600 8375 £,625
10,000 10,000 14,073 (4,073}
1,008 1,000 817 183
1,000 1,000 954 46
4,096 4,006 4,580 {484)

- 3,000 2492 508
106,600 25,815 4,750 21,065
267,485 196,811 167,092 28,819
292,194 292,194 283,080 9,114
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance-Budget and Acfual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Varlance
Original Finat Favorabfe
Budget Butiget Actual (unfavorable}
Overime 200 504 428 72
Wages & Szalares-Temporary Employeas 26,000 26,000 20,800 5,200
Bonus-One Time - 2,000 1,991 g
Christrnas Bonus & Longevity 2,116 2,118 1,067 1,049
FICA 24,519 24,519 16,241 8,278
TCRS Contribution 42,999 42,009 41,521 1478
Medicare - - 4,094 (4,004)
Employse Health insurance 33,2564 33,254 34,167 {943}
Workers Compensation Insurance 4,575 4,575 3,431 1,144
Printing Services 100 100 - 100
Memberships & Fees 2,000 2,000 3,371 (1.374)
Advertising & Publicity 1,500 1,500 - 1,600
Telephone Services - 1,200 1,841 {841)
Medical Services 1,200 - - -
Subseriptions & Bocks 718 718 1,084 {346}
Education Seminars & Training 2,000 2,000 i05 1,895
Travel 23,464 23,464 6,178 17,286
Olher Confracted Services - - 4,181 (4,181}
Postal Service 110 110 258 (148)
Legal Notices - - 925 {925)
Office Supplies 500 500 316 184
Ganeral Operaling Supplies 800 80O 288 512
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 50 50 - 50
‘eh Parts/OilFluidfTires 160 150 - 156
insurance general liability 384 384 430 {46)
Equipment Rentalllease 3,500 3,500 3,329 171
Grants & Other Subsidles 30,000 28,680 6,475 22,205
Tolal City Administrator 492 333 493,313 435,612 57,701
Finance Department:
Wages & Salaries-Permanent Employeas 306,382 321,382 321,174 208
Cvertime 500 800 507 93
Bonus-One Time - 3,260 3,180 20
Christmas Bonus & Longevity 2,238 2,238 2,226 12
FICA 23,648 23,648 19,658 3,080
Medicare - - 4,412 (4.412)
TCRS Conftribution 45,038 45,038 47,065 (2,027}
Employee Health Insurance 60,774 89,774 59,457 10,347
Workers Compensation 9,813 9,913 7434 2479
Postal Service 7,500 7,500 11,894 (4,394)
Printing Services 750 750 10 640
Legal Notices 1,000 1,000 2,460 {1,460)
Accounting & Audit Services 55,000 55,000 47 415 7.585
Repair & Maint. Office Equip. 500 5600 2,049 {1,548)
Subscriptions & Books 250 250 4506 {200}
Memberships & Dues 1,75C 1,750 653 1,097
Education Seminars & Training 3.000 3,000 3,082 82)
Ciher Professional Services 75,000 410,080 105,800 4,200
Travel 8,000 8,060 4,995 1,005
Other Contracted Services 1,000 21,000 20,515 485
Office Supplies & Materials 4,500 4,600 5,345 {845}
Office Equipment - - 186 {188)
Office Supplies - - 12 (12)
General Operating Supplies 500 500 60 440
nsurance 1,126 1,128 1,282 {136)
Equipment RenlallLease 5,750 5,750 3,437 2,313
Office equipment - 4,862 3,900 262
Office Equipment - . 4,755 {4,755)
Computers/Software - - 1,183 (1,183)
Total Finance Depariment 621,119 599,281 684,676 14,605

Purchasing Departmant:

“The notes lo financial statemenis are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tertnessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenue , Expendltures, and Changes

in Fund Balance-Budpet and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

The notes 1o financial statements are an integral part of this statement

Variance
Qriginat Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {unfavorable}

Wages & Salaries-Permanent Employees 44,381 46,391 48,365 26

Bonus-Cne Time - 530 530 0

Christmas Bonus & Longevity 273 273 270 3

FICA 3,436 3,438 2,825 811

Medlcare - - 632 (632)

TCRS Contribution 8,525 6,525 6,798 (273)

Employae Health [nsurance 10,714 10,714 1,059 {345)

Worker's Compensation 1,525 1,525 1,144 381

Postal Service 250 250 439 (189)

Other Professional Services 300 300 - 300

Education Seminars & Training &00 500 - 500

... Travel 300 2,360 580 1,720

Other Contracted Services - - 299 {206)

Office Supplies & Materials 550 550 546 4

Other Supplies & Materials 50 50 33 i7

Insurance 973 973 1,090 (147)

Equipment RentalfLease 2,025 2,025 1,765 260
Total Purchasing Departmant 71,812 76,342 74,376 1,966
Retiree Bensfits-General Fund:

Health Insurance/Retiree 500,600 500,000 309,530 180,470
Total Retiree Banefits-General Fund 500,800 500,000 309,530 190,470
Computer Operations:

Wages & Salaries-Permanent Employees 117,608 120,608 120,282 326

Qvertime 500 500 34 466

Bonus-One Time - 1,060 1,060 -

Christmas Bonus & Longevity 720 720 726 (6}

FICA 8,052 9,052 7,385 1,687

Medicare - - 1,646 {1,646}

TCRS Contribution 17,288 17,288 17,651 {363)

Employee Heaith Insurance 21,629 21,629 22,467 (838)

Worker's Compensation 3,050 3,050 2,288 762

Telephone Services 2,568 2,568 1,257 1,311

ClothingfUniform/Shoes - - 176 (176}

Other Professional Services 1,000 1,000 53 047

Repair & Maint. Office Equip. 250 250 - 250

Subscriptions & Books 50 50 18 32

Education Seminars & Training 4,000 4,600 1,136 2,864

Trave] 4,000 4,600 428 3,571

QOther Confracted Services 4,000 4,000 5,722 {1,722}

Office Supplies & Materials 200 200 130 70

ADP Parts & Components 12,500 2,500 34 2,466

General Operating Supplies 1,000 1,000 765 235

Gasoline/Diese! Fusi 400 400 221 i79

Office Equipment 55,400 65,400 45,884 19,516

Equipment Renfal/l.ease 17,000 17,000 9,925 7,075

{nsurance 4,301 4,301 4,819 {518)
Total Computer Operations 276,516 280,676 244,088 36,468
Human Rasources

Wages & Salaries-Permanent Employees 89,105 95,105 95,883 222

Overtime - 1,000 763 237

Bonus-One Time - 530 530 -

Christmas Bonus & Longevity 486 486 450 38

FICA 6,892 6,592 5416 1,476

Medicare - - 1,212 (1,212)

TCRS Contribution 11,986 11,986 13,072 {1,088)

Employee Health Insurance 16,186 16,186 19,568 {3.382)

Worker's Compensation 2,288 2,288 1,711 577

Employee Education & Training - 7,000 - 7,000

Tuition Reimbursement - - 8,711 {8,711)
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Gity of Morristown, Tennesses
General Fund
Statement of Revenue , Expendifures, and Changes

In Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {unfavorable)
Postal Service 170 170 470 (300)
Office Supplies - - 125 {125)
Printing Services 1,000 1,000 1,698 (6989)
Legal Notices 750 750 1,478 {728)
Subscriptions & Books 500 500 - 500
Education Seminars & Training 15,768 4,768 2,670 2,088
Memberships & dues 550 550 1,284 {734)
Travel 3,000 4,000 4,065 {65)
Other Contracied Services 6,000 8,000 7.768 234
Office Supplies & Materials 800 800 1,642 {842)
General Operating Supplies 3,000 2,000 451 1,549
Other Supplies & Materials - - 340 {340)
Insurance 79,120 17,120 4,152 12,968
Office Equipment - 2,000 895 1,105
Equipment Rental/l.ease 2.000 2,000 2,552 {552)
Total Human Resources 239,601 186,131 176,906 9,228
Legal Services:
Wages & Salaries-Permanent Employees 10,395 10,385 9,789 G605
Christmas’'Bonus & Longevity 1,845 1,845 291 1,354
FICA 921 92i 24 897
Employea Health Insurance 20,814 20,814 7,163 13,651
Medicare - - 6 ()]
Warkers Compensation Insurance - . 2,288 {2,288)
JudgmentFees/Court Costs - 180,000 180,000 -
Professional & consulting - 31,600 31,585 15
Allorney Consult Fees 84,000 64,000 45,450 18,550
Subscriptions & Books 2,500 2,500 3,269 (769}
Insurance 1.024 1,024 1,147 {123)
Tolal Legal Services 101,209 312,898 281,012 31,887
Community and Economic Affairs:
Wages & Salaries Permanent Employees 190,068 192,068 191,604 464
Bonus-One Time - 1,100 1,060 40
Chisimas Bonus & longevity 1,221 1,224 1,102 118
FIGA 14,644 14,644 1,713 2,931
Medicare - - 2,639 {2,630}
TCRS Conbribulion 27,849 27,849 28,040 (181}
Employee Health insurance 30,463 30,463 34,451 (988)
Workes's Compensation 4,270 4,270 3,203 1,067
Postal Service 1,000 1,000 837 363
Printing Services 500 500 35 465
Legal Noticas 3,000 1,500 3N 1,109
Medical Services - - 28 (28)
Qiher Prefessional Services 500 500 - 500
Subscriptions & Books 500 500 itd 386
Memberships & Dues 2,000 2,000 1,873 127
Repair & Maint Office Equip, - - 85 {65)
Education Seminars & Training 2,000 2,000 867 1,133
Travel 3,500 3,500 2,003 1,467
Other Contracted Services 27,500 25,000 25,130 871
Office Supplies & Materials - 3,000 1,336 1,664
Office Equipment 10,000 10,500 10,186 314
General Operating Supplies - - ] {5)
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 1,500 1,500 785 735
Veh Paris/OilfFluidiTires 300 300 38 262
Other Supplies & Materials 1,200 1,200 215 985
Insurance 873 873 1,090 {7
Equipment RentalfLease 1,000 1,000 1,776 {776)
Other Misc Expenses - 1,500 224 1,276
Building & Improvemants - - 59,185 {59,185}
Grants - - 324 {324)

The notes to financial stalements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Qriginal Final Favorable
Budget Budgest Actual {unfavorable)
Total Community and Economic Affairs 323,988 328,088 377,180 {48,102}
Codes Enforcement:

Wages & Salaries-Permanant Employeas 36,018 40,015 39,850 65

Overtima - 100 24 76

Bonus-Cne Time - 535 530 5

Christmas Bonus & Longeviky 283 283 288 {3)

FICA 2,777 2,777 2,460 3i7

Medicare - - 555 (658)

TCRS Contribution 5,303 5,303 5,411 {108)

Employee Health Insurance 10,651 10,651 10,994 (343)

Workers Compensation 1,525 1,525 2,144 619

Reproduction and Printing - - 1,650 (1,650)

Clothing/Uniform/Shoas 400 400 - 460

Postat Service 50 50 466 (416)

Legal Notices 2400 200 - 200

Telephone Services 400 400 452 {52}

Computer/Data Processing 250 250 - 250

Memberships & dues 75 75 - 75

Education Seminars & Training 500 500 149 351

Travel 800 800 674 126

Other Contracted Services 200 30,800 7.485 23,315

Office Supplies & Malerials 100 100 35 65

Office Equipment 100 100 - 100

General Operating Supplies 100 100 - 100

Gasoline & Diasel Fuel 2,000 2,000 1,429 571

Veh Parts/Qilifluid/Tires 760 700 125 575

Insurance - - 574 {574)

Equipment RentalLease 100 100 186 (86)
Total Codes Enfarcement 62,528 97,764 75,580 22,184
Community Development:

Grants - {4,350) - (4,350)
Totat Community Development - {4,350) - {4,350)
Morristown Community Development Corp.:

Wages & Salaries Permanent Employess 27,424 28,424 28,950 474

Chrisimas Bonus & Loagevity 134 134 80 58

FICA 2,108 2,108 1,795 313

Medicare - - 401 {401}

TCRS Contribution 3,986 3,086 4,195 {209)

Employee Health Insurance 5,396 5,396 5,529 {133)

Workers Compensation 763 763 572 191

Poslat Service 50 [£1¢] 98 1

Legal Notices 400 750 542 208

Subscriptions & Books 250 250 267 (17)

Memberships & Dues 700 120 1,065 {345)

Education Seminars & Training 800 1,300 1,272 28

Travel 2,000 2,380 2,197 183

Other Contracted Services - 2,000 1,000 1,000

Office supplies & Materials 1,200 2002 203 1,799

General Operating Supplies 300 1,519 1,533 {14)
Total Morristown Community Dev. Corp. 45,511 52,831 40,688 3,133
Engineering:

Wages & Salaries Permanent Employees 177,025 187,025 186,166 859

Christmas Bonus & longevity 752 752 413 339

FICA 13,676 13,676 11,419 2,257

Medicare - - 2,553 {2,553)

TCRS Contribution 25,841 25,841 26,973 (1,132)

Employee Health Insurance 33,509 33,509 34,017 (508)

Worker's Compensation 4,728 4,728 3,546 1,182

The notes to financial statements are an integral past of this statement. 2?




City of Morristown, Tennessee

General Fund

Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

for the Year Ended June 30, 2042

Clothing/Uniform/Shoes
Postal Service

Printing Services

Legal Netices

Telephone Notices

Medical Services

Other Professional Services
Subscriplions & Books
Memberships & dues
Education Seminars & Training
Travel

Other Contracted Services
Office Supplies & Matarials
General Operating Supplies
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel

eh Parts/Oil/Fluid/Tires
Othar Supplies & Materials
Insurance

Equipment Rental/Lease
TIGER Grant

Total Enginesring

Police Supervision:
Wages and Salaries parmanent Employsas
Overtime
Bonus-One Time
Christmas Bonus & longevity
FICA
Medicare
TCRS Contribution
Employee Health Insurance
Worker's Compeansation
Clothing/Uniform/Shoes
Travel
Postal Service
Mailing
Printing Services
Legal Nolices
Tetaphone Servicas
Computer/Data Processing
Othar Professionat Services
Repair & Maint. Vehicles
Repair & Maint. Other
Repair & Maint. Office Equip
Subscriptions & Books
Memberships & dues
Education Seminars & Training
Travel Business Expenses
Other contracted services
Office Supplies
Office Supplies & Materials
Office Equipment
Janitorial Supplies
General Operating Supplies
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel
Veh Parts/QibtFluid/Tires
Insurance
Equipment RentallLease
Sax Offenders Administration
Other Misc Expenses
DOJ JAG Grant

Total Police Supervision

The netes to financial slataments are an fategral part of this statement.

Variance
Original Final Favorable

Budget Budget Actual {unfavorable}
250 250 221 29
200 200 75 125
- - 35 (35)

750 750 196 554
993 993 1,184 {198)
- - 28 (28)

1,500 1,500 - 1,500
250 250 - 250
2,565 2,565 2,163 402
- - 326 (325)
3,000 3,000 1,758 1,244
300 360 2,708 {2,408}
5,700 5,700 5,577 123
6,111 68,111 20 6,081
3,800 3,800 4,274 (474}
1,800 1,860 259 1,541
500 500 - 500
1,869 1,889 2,417 (228)
6,247 6,247 5,242 1,005
- 90,000 90,0060 -
281,388 391,386 381,279 10,107
265,554 265,554 219,003 46,551
1,000 1,100 1,048 54

- 2,200 2,120 80

2,497 2,487 2,406 i
22,342 22,342 13,482 8,860
- - 3,139 (3,139)
39,075 39,075 32418 8,657
64,262 64,262 60,873 3,389
9,150 9,150 6,863 2,287
850 950 808 142
- - 52 52)
1,200 1,200 1,103 88
- - 356 (356}

300 300 - 360
200 200 - 200
750 750 879 {120}
30,108 30,108 34,133 {4,025}
1,000 1,000 955 45
150 150 335 {175)

50 50 - 50
- - 1,605 {1,605)

850 850 200 650
800 200 2422 {1,522)
2,300 2,300 235 2,065
7.000 7,000 5,069 1,031
45,000 45,000 81,205 {36,805)
- 108 108 -
1,200 1,200 1,120 80
2,500 2,500 - 2,500
150 150 - 160
800 800 940 {140)
5,000 5,000 4,543 457
500 500 488 12
5,530 5,530 6,196 {666)
500 500 2,325 (1,825)
- - 1,150 (1,150)
- - 5,000 (5,000)

- 20,120 - 20,720
510,818 533,346 494,166 38,180
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Palro) and Traffic:

Wages and Salaries Permanent Employees

Qveriime

‘Wages & Salaries Temporary Employess

Holiday Pay

Bonus-One Time

Christmas Bonus & Longevity
FICA

Medicare

TCRS Contribution

Employee Health Insurance
Worker's Compensation
Clothing/Uniform/Shoes

Othver Contractual

Postal Service

Printing Services
Memberships & Duss
Advertising

Small Tocls & Minor Equipment
Janitorial Supplies

Janitorial Supplies

Gasoling & Diesel Fuel
Automotive Parts

Veh Parts/Oil/Fluid/Tires
Vehicle Expense

Other Supplies

Telephone Senvices

Medical Services

COther Professional Services
Repairs & Maint. Communicalions
Repair & Maint. Vehicles
Repair & Maint Bldg/Grounds
Education Seminars & Training
Travel Business Expenses
Other Confracted Services
Office Supplies & Materials
Muritions

Defensive Driver Class Supply
General Operating Supplies
Insurance

Automotive Equipment

Office Equipment

Equipment Renfal/lease
Other Misc Expenses

Grants

Motor Equipment

Other Capital Outlay

Other Machinery & Equipment

Totat Patrol and Traffic

Police Investigation:

Wages & Salaries Permanent Employees

Overtime

Bonus-One Time

Christmas Benus & Longevity
FICA

Medicare

TCRS Cenliibution
Employae Health nsurance
Worker's Compensation
Postal Service

Printing Services
Telephone Services

Other Professioral Services

City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund

for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes
ln Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Variance
Qriginat Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (unfavorabie)
2,653,217 2,606,017 2,521,811 84,208
85,000 106,480 105,527 853
- 2,000 1,703 298
76,236 76,236 76,362 {133)
- 36,000 33,916 2,084
23,950 23,950 23,077 27
204,887 204,887 167,544 37,343
- 39,000 338,904 96
396,662 396,662 396,402 260
683,614 683,614 686,471 (2,857)
97,600 97,800 80,104 17,496
40,000 40,000 32,293 7,707
- 1,736 1,336 400
300 300 512 (212)
2,500 2,600 1,270 1,230
1,750 1,750 1,238 513
500 500 - 500
- - 17 {17
- - 73 {73)
100 100 - 100
190,000 242,000 241,733 287
- 20 - 20
59,000 59,000 63,451 {4,451)
- 1,915 1,918 -
- - 25 {25)
12,250 12,250 12,226 24
- 2,000 1,174 829
7.000 7000 5,248 1,752
1,500 1,500 418 1,082
9,000 9,000 9,914 (914)
1,500 1,500 603 897
24,000 33,200 15,726 17,474
21,100 21,160 12,026 9,074
10,500 8,500 6,101 2,399
10,000 10,000 10,711 {711}
19,600 29,000 26,133 2,867
10,600 10,000 2,184 7,816
- - 921 (921)
93,184 93,184 104,414 {11,230)
- 75 - 75
4,900 8,900 8,784 116
4,643 4,643 3,697 1,046
- - 53 53)
- 20,200 19,872 328
72,500 72,500 72,496 4
48,000 48,000 35,856 12,144
- 64,669 1,718 62,953
4,864,393 5,679,488 4,828,757 262,731
784,307 784,307 773,575 10,732
28,000 38,456 37,635 821
- 9,000 7,949 1,651
10,363 10,363 10,632 {269)
60,831 60,831 50,003 10,828
- - 11,656 {11,656)
114,874 119,574 118,692 {118}
161,399 161,398 154,699 6,700
22,875 22,875 17,187 5,718
500 500 618 {118}
200 200 - 200
4,560 4,500 4,707 {207}
300 300 72 228

The noles to financial statements are an integral part of this stalement.
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City of Morristown, Tennesses
General Fund :
Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes

In Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Qriginal Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {unfavorable)

Madical Services - - 140 {140y

Subscriptions & Books 300 360 - 300

Memberships & Dues 500 500 408 92

Repairs and maint. Vehicles 700 700 - 760

Clothing/Uniform/Shoes 9,750 9,750 8,740 1,10

Travel - 260 - 200

Education Seminars & Training 3,000 1,000 841 169

Travel Business Expenses 5,000 7,000 B,700 300

Other Contracted Services 1,000 1,000 823 177

Office Equipment 1,500 640 518 122

OfHice Supplias 6,100 6,100 6,154 (54)

Small Tools & Minor Eauipment - 15 15 1

Computers/Software - 880 858 2

General Operating Supplies 1,100 1,100 105 905

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 18,500 16,500 19,132 (2,632)

Veh Parts/Qil/FluidfTires 6,800 8,800 1,519 5,281

[nsurence 21,504 21,504 24,095 {2,591

Equipment Rentalltease 9,600 9,500 4,463 5037
Total Police Investigation 1,271,403 1,205,774 1,262,897 32,877
Central Communications:

Employee Health insurance - 100 108 (98)
Totaf Central Communications - 108 198 (98}
Vice:

Wages & Sataries permanent Employees 55,825 55,825 55,538 287

Overtima 3,500 4,984 3,847 1,137

Bonus-One Time - 630 530 100

Christmas Bonus & Longevity 636 836 641 5}

FICA 4,319 4,319 3,667 632

Medicare - - 859 {859)

TCRS Contibution 8,161 8,161 8,755 (594)

Employae Health [nsurance 10,783 10,783 14,207 {424)

Worker's Compensation 1,525 1,525 1,257 268

Telephone Services . - 8412 {912)

Medical Services - - 28 {28)

QOther Professional Services 800 800 - 800

Repair & Maint. Office Equip. 200 200 - 200

Education Seminars & Training 440 400 296 i04

Travel Business Expenses 325 325 325 -

Office Supplies & Malerials 450 400 399 1

Qffice Equipment 250 250 - 250

Clothing/Uniforms/Shoes 650 650 650 -

Gasofine & Diese! Fuel 2,000 2,000 1,736 284

Veh Parts/Qi/Fluid/Tires 500 500 173 327

Insurance 1,946 1,846 2,180 {234)
Total Vice 92,220 94,334 93,021 1,313
Fire Supervision:

Wages & Salaries Permanent Employees 381,204 385,204 395,789 415

Bonus-One Time - 3,600 3,180 420

Chsistmas Bonus & longevity 5,292 5,282 5,342 (50)

FICA 29,667 28,567 24,513 5,054

Medicare - - 5,501 {5,501)

TCRS Contribution 56,029 56,029 58,088 (2,059)

Employee Health Insurance 65,032 65,032 67,050 {2,018)

\Worker's Compensation 9,150 9,150 6,063 3,087

Clothing/UnifermyShoes 300 300 478 {178)

Postal Service 50 50 48 1

Legal Nofices - - 237 {237)

Medical Services - - 58 (56)

The notes to financial stalementls are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenue , Expendifures, and Changes
in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012
Vatlance
Original Final Favorable
Btitiget Budget Actual (unfavorabie}
Telephone Services 2,200 2,200 2,228 (28}
Subscriptions & Books 300 300 260 40
Memberships & Fees 700 700 591 109
Education Seminars & Training 200 200 345 {145}
Trave! Business Expenses 400 400 518 (118}
Other Contracted Services 1,500 1,500 171 1,329
Office Supplies & Materials 1,900 1,800 491 1,409
Office Equipment - 2,000 1,059 941
Gasoline & Diese) Fuel 5,500 5,500 5,274 228
Veh Parts/OilFluid/Tires 1,500 1,500 98 1,402
General Operating Supplies 300 300 200 100
Insurance 2,150 2,150 2410 {280)
Equipment Rental/Lease 4,850 4,850 3,340 1,510
Total Fire Supervision 568,124 588,724 583,331 5,383
Fire Inspection:
Wages & Salaries Permanent Employees 60,789 63,789 62,847 942
Bonus-One Time - 830 530 100
Christmas Bonus & Longevity 825 825 832 14
FICA - 4,713 3,733 980
Medicare B - 873 (873)
TCRS Contibution 8,914 8,914 8,921 N
Employee Health Insurance 10,823 16,823 11,154 (328}
Worker's Compensation 1,625 1,525 6,863 (5,338)
Mailing 4,713 - - -
Postal Service 100 100 4 96
Telephone Services 406 400 376 24
Subscriptions & Books 1,000 1,000 206 794
Mamberships & Dues 400 400 280 120
Education Seminars & Training 1,700 1,700 100 1,600
Travel Business Expenses 3,500 3,500 2.491 1,009
Public Relations Expenses 2,500 2,500 2,490 10
Other Contracted Services 11,900 11,900 2,087 9,813
Office Supplies & Materials 300 300 331 31)
General Opaeraling Supplies 300 300 93 267
Clothing/Uniforms/Shoes 300 300 162 138
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 5,000 5,000 4,811 189
Veh Parts/QillFluid/Tires 1,000 1,000 165 835
Insurance 2,150 2,150 2,410 {260)
Equipment RentalfLease - 2,000 1,962 38
Environ. Review Project Costs 150 150 - 150
Total Fire Inspection 118,288 123,919 113,717 10,202
Fire Stations:
Repair/Maint Operations Equip. 3,000 3,000 - 3,000
RepairMaint Bldg/Grounds 26,000 37,755 33,679 4,076
Repalr & Maint. Other 3,000 3,000 3,658 {558)
Other Contracted Services 760 700 1,872 {1,172)
Office Supplies & Materials 300 300 327 {27)
Smali Tools and Minor Eguipment - - 116 {1186)
Janitorial Supplies 18,000 18,000 14,159 3,841
General Operating Supplies 6,100 6,100 5,684 418
Gasoline & Diesel Fue! 300 300 72 228
Veh Parts/QiliFluld/Tires - - 100 {100)
Building & Improvements 25,000 25,000 2413 22,887
Furniture 18,350 13,350 11,223 2,127
Insurance 7,680 7,680 8,608 {926)
Total Fire Stations 103,430 115,185 81,809 33,376
Fire fighting:
Wages & Sataries Permanent Employees 3,156,067 3,132,087 3,063,008 68,969
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement, 31




Overlime

Holiday Pay

Holiday Pay

Bonus-Ona Time
Christmas Bonus & Longevity
FICA

Medicare

TGRS Contribution
Employee Health Insurance
Worker's Compensaticn
Unemployment

Tuiticn Reimbursement
Water & Sewer

Telephone Services
Medical Services

Other Professional Services
Reapair & Maint. Vehicles

Repait/Maint. Operations Equip.

Repair & Maint Bldg/Grounds
Subscriptions & Books
Employee Seminars & Training
Clothing/Uniform/Shoes
Postal Service

Maiting

Legal Notices

Automotive Parts
Memberships & Dues

Trave) Business Expenses
Other Contracted Services
Office Supplies & Materials
General Qperating Supplies
Small Tools & Minor Equipment
Uniforms

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel

Veh Paris/QilfFluid/Tires
Insurance

Equipment RentallLease
QOther Misc Expensas
Federal Grant

Office Equipment

Machinery & Equipment

Totat Fire Fighting

Fire & Medical Response:
Education Seminars & Training
RepairMaint Operations Equip.
Memberships & Duas
Small Tools & Equipment
Clothing/Uniforms/Shoes
Printing Services
Medical Services
General Operating Supplies
Insurance

Total Fire and Medical Response

Inspections:

Wages & Salaries Permanent Employees

Banus-One Time

Christmas Bonus & Longevity
FICA

Medicare

TCRS Contribution

City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund

Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance-Budgst and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Original Finat Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {unfavorable}
208,500 222,500 221737 763
82,704 62,704 78,335 (15,631}
- - 19,328 {19,328)
- 47,000 40,805 6,185
34,902 34,902 35,297 (395)
244,109 244,108 206,371 37,738
- 46,600 46,564 a6
468,524 468,524 480,191 {21,667}
831,935 831,835 828,127 3,808
118,950 118,950 93,388 25,562
- - 1,405 {1,405)
- - 3,238 (3,238)
2,000 2,000 1,840 160
460 400 - 400
- - 820 {820)
29,600 24,000 23,364 5,636
500 500 122 378
8,000 8,000 8,280 1,720
- - 12 12}
500 500 2,620 {2,020)
8,500 6,600 1,540 4,960
30,000 30,000 18,018 11,284
200 200 110 80
- - 23 (23)
- - 128 {i28)
- - 247 {247)
500 500 a0t (401}
20,000 26,060 22,784 {2,781}
. - 048 {948)
1,000 1,000 421 579
14,000 14,000 20,982 {6,982}
- - 4,324 (4,324}
- 164 94 70
£0,000 60,000 46,807 13,393
55,500 76,500 74,861 1,639
102,400 114,800 114,740 80
2,500 2,500 3,321 {821}
- - 75 75)
- 17,300 - 17,300
- 885 885 -
11,195 11,195 12,085 {800}
5,470,886 5,605,235 5,485,944 119,261
5,000 5,000 1,474 3,526
2,000 2,000 1,360 700
150 150 - 150
4,000 10,600 9,147 853
3,000 3,600 3,324 (324)
300 300 560 (260}
- - 138 (138)
3,500 3,500 3,043 457
2,150 2,150 2,410 {260)
20,100 26,100 21,383 4,707
234,077 240,077 249,030 47
- 2,200 2,120 80
3,682 3,682 3,715 {33)
18,189 18,189 15,062 3,127
- - 3,379 (3,379)
34,737 34,737 35,684 {S47)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statemant.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance-Budcet and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2042

Varfance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {unfavorabie}
Employee Health Insurance 43,250 43,250 44,754 {1,504)
Worker's Compensation 6,100 6,100 4,575 1,525
Clothing/Uniform/Shoes - - 852 {852)
Education Seminars & Training 3,600 3,500 1,276 2,224
Postal Service 300 300 102 198
Printing Services 306 300 - 300
Legal Notices 200 200 138 B2
Telephone Services 4,000 4,000 1,483 2,507
Other Professional Services 600 690 - 600
Subseriptions & Books 5,000 3,500 - 3,500
Memberships & Dues 800 800 689 1114
Travel Business Expenses 2,500 2,560 1,498 1,002
Other Contracted Servicas 1,300 38,800 27,162 11,638
Office Equipment - . 2,043 (2,043)
Office Supplies & Materials 2506 250 209 41
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 6,000 6,000 5,301 699
Veh Parts/QitFluid/Tires 2,200 2,200 1,536 664
Other Supplies & Materials 400 400 330 70
Equipment Rental/Lease 4,000 1,000 5,497 (4,497}
Insurance 1,900 1,900 2,180 (280}
Totat Inspections 370,285 414,485 390,626 14,859
Public Works Supernvision:
Wages & Sataries Permanent Employees 95,710 95,710 72,474 23,536
Bonus-Cne Time - 830 530 100
Chrisimas Bonus & Longevity 3,700 3,700 1,452 2,248
FICA 7,457 7,457 4,616 2,841
Medicare - - 1,042 (1.042)
TCRS Contribution 14,002 14,092 10,882 3,210
Employee Heaith Insurance 18,711 19,711 16,668 3,043
Worker's Compensation 2,791 2,791 2,093 698
Clothing/Uniform/Shoes 3,100 3,234 1,201 2,033
Postal Service 25 25 - 25
Printing Service 100 100 - 100
Legal Notices - 1,384 1,383 1
Telephone Services 400 400 377 23
Medical Services - 55 56 -
Subscriptions & Books 50 50 - 50
Memberships & Dues 160 100 - i00
Education Seminars & Training 1,500 658 145 514
Travel Business Expenses 650 902 901 1
Other Confracted Services 350 350 262 88
Office Supplies & Materials 1,980 1,800 715 1,185
Office Equipment 200 210 210 -
Janitorial Supplies 100 100 B 100
General Operating Supplies 100 100 ] g1
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 3,500 1,787 921§ 868
Veh Parts/QitiFividiTires 1,708 1,700 171 1,620
Concrete Products 200 200 - 200
Equipment RentaliLease 2,750 3,079 3,487 {408)
Judgement, Fees & Court Costs - - 4,000 {4,600}
Other Misc Expenses 100 100 100 -
fnsurance 3,226 3,615 3,614 1
Total Public Works Supervision 163,612 164,142 127,008 37,133
Bulldings and Grounds;
Wages and Salaries Permanent Employees 76,105 79,105 78,673 432
Overtime 6,000 6,000 4,927 1,073
Wages and Salaries Temporary Employess - 25,000 25,122 (122)
Bonus-One Time - 1,500 1,272 228
Christmas Bonus & Longevity 1,088 1,088 1,108 (10)
FICA 5,206 7,906 6,757 1,149
Medicare - - 1,608 {1,508)

The notes la financial statements are an integral part of this statement




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Orlginal Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {unfavorable}
TCRS Contribution 11,279 11,279 12,245 {966}
Employee Health Insurance 21,329 21,329 22,343 {1,014)
Worker's Compansation 3,050 3,050 2,448 802
Reproducting and Printing - - 418 {418}
Unemployment Insurance - 4,600 2,822 1,178
Clothing/Uniform/Shoes 1,500 270 1,807 {1,537}
Posta! Service 25 25 4] 25
Legal Notices 100 5,100 1,652 3,448
Landscaping - 1,153 1,153 -
Eleclricity - 365,000 390,846 (25,646)
Water & Sewer 578,000 17,450 2.527 14,823
Natural Gas & Propane - 72,000 49 563 22,437
Telephonse Services - 95,000 87,851 7,148
Medical Services - 200 12 88
Other Professional Services 1,000 4,000 282 18
Repair & Maint. Vehicles 1,000 1,000 17 983
Repair & Maint. Operations Equip. - 3,500 10,958 (7,458)
Repair & Maint Bidg/Grounds 35,000 47,000 42113 4,887
Memberships and Dues 500 500 500 -
Repairs and Maintenance - 614 - 614
Other Contracted Services 60,500 55,085 56,494 {1.409)
Office Supplies & Materials 100 408 280 120
Smali Tools & Equipment 4,000 8,000 5,101 3,899
Janitorial Supplies - - 701 (701)
Janitorial Supplies 10,500 15,000 12,587 2413
General Operating Supplies 19,800 14,800 13,765 1,035
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 3,500 7.250 4,486 2764
eh Paris/OilfFluidTiras 4,000 4,000 782 3,218
insurance 10,240 11,540 11,474 86
Buildings/Office-Rentals - 1,000 600 400
Land-RentallLease - - 305 {305)
Equipment Renfalltease 1,200 1,200 800 400
Other Misc Expenses 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Building & Improvements - - 30,982 (30,982)
Improvements other than Bldgs - 5,015 4,668 347
Machinery & Equipment 8,000 8,500 6,070 430
Other capifal outlay 500,000 500,000 312,439 187,561
Total Buiklings and Grounds 1,365,732 1,401,869 1,211,056 190,813
Equipment Shop:
Wages and Salaries Permanent Employees 265,047 277,047 276,559 489
Overtime 10,000 16,000 15,081 19
Bonus-One Time - 4,300 3,710 590
Christmas Bonus and Longevity 3,372 3,372 3,222 150
FICA 20,634 20,634 17,970 2,565
Medicare - - 4,055 (4,055)
TCRS Contribution 39,216 39,216 42,815 {3,5509)
Employee Health Insurance 74,632 74,632 76,448 {1,818}
Worker's Compensation 10,675 10,675 8,712 1,963
Reproduction and Printing - - 75 {75}
Unemployment Insurance - - 50 {50)
Clothing/Uniform/Shoes 4,800 4,800 3,922 878
Postal Service - - 91 {91)
Srmalk Tools & Minor - - 50 {50)
Legal Nolices - - 140 {146}
Gasoline/Fuels/Lub - - 437 {437}
Automotive Parts - - 30 (30)
Matural Gas & Propane 600 600 116 484
Telephone Services - 1,000 749 251
Medical Services - 5,000 473 4,527
Gther Professional Services 500 - -
Repairs and Majint. Vehicles 500 500 159 344
Repair & Main Bldg/Grounds - 500 2i1 289
Education Seminars & Training 2,000 1,000 1,040 (40}

The noles to financia! statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Generat Fund

Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance-Budget and Actuat

for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Travel Business Expensas
Office Supplies & Malerials
Office Equipment

Small Tools & Equipment
Janitorial Supplies

General Operating Supplies
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel

‘Veh Parts/Qil/Fluid/Tires
Electrical, Plumbing, & Hardware
Equipment Rental/l.ease
Other Misc Expenses
Motor Equipment
Insurance

Total Equipment Shop

Strest Repairs & Mainienance:
Wages & Salaries Permanent Employges
Cvertime
Banus-One Time
Christmas & Longevity
FICA
Medicare
TCRS Confribution
Employee Heaith Insurance
Worker's Compensation
ClothingUniform/Shoes
Legal Nofices
Telephone Services
Medical Services
Education Seminars & Training
Other Professional Services
Repair & Maint. Vehicles
Repair/Maint Operations Equip.
Repair & Main!. Bldg/Grounds
Travel Business Expenses
Other Contracted Services
Construction Materials
Office Supplies & Maferials
Office Equipment
Small Tools & Equipment
Janitoriat Supplies
Uniforms
Genaral Opsrating Supplies
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel
Veh Paris/Qil/FluidfTires
Concrete Products
Crushed Stone & Sand
Sait’'Sodium Chloride
Asphalt
Equipment Rental/Lease
Other Misc Expenses
Motor Equipment
Other Capital Quilay
Insurance

Total Street Repairs and Maintenance

Street Lighting and Signs:
Wages & Salaries Parmanent Employeos
Overlime
Bonus-One Time
Christmas Bonus & longevity
FICA
Medicara

Tha noles to financlal statements are an integral part of lhis stalemeat.

Varlance
Original Final Favarable

Budget Budaet Actual {unfavorable)
300 300 - 308
500 500 260 240
2,000 1,500 1,188 312
6,000 9,000 7,589 1,411
2,000 5,000 3,708 1,282
1,000 16,500 1,378 15,124

2,800 2,800 2,999 (199}
1,800 1,800 1,192 708

- - 5 (5}
1,200 200 B 200

- - 18 (18)
28,500 28,500 27,044 1,456

2,150 2,150 2,410 (266}
481,226 527,526 504,804 22,722
317,264 317,284 312,393 4,871
8,500 8,500 3,243 4,657
- 5,400 4,769 631

5,220 5,220 5,268 48
25,320 25,320 19,477 5,843

- - 4,266 (4,266}
47,115 47,115 46,779 336
95,795 95,795 93,174 2,621
13,725 13,725 10,619 3,106

5,100 5,100 5323 (223}

- - 30 {30}

- - 373 (373}

- - 747 (747}

750 750 <00 (150)

400 400 2,375 (1,975)
1,000 1,000 - 1,008
- 14,500 14,487 13

- - 1,400 {1,400}
300 300 - 300

- - 1,715 {1,715}
- 4,964 4,984 -

100 100 176 {76)

- - 289 (269)

- - 2,431 (2,431)
170 i70 3 187
- 144 137 7

- - 11,801 (11,901)
50,000 50,000 36,882 11,118
24,500 24,500 19,254 5,246
8,000 8,000 4,699 3,301
15,500 65,500 52,9086 12,564
400 400 - 480
36,500 136,500 128,884 7.618

500 500 1,400 (200)
800 800 - 800
20,000 20,000 14,588 5412

- - 40,056 (40,056)

40,752 10,752 12,048 (1,288)
687,711 862,719 860,636 2,083
32,346 64,346 63,760 586
2,000 2,000 81 1,839
- B10 530 80
482 462 i17 345

2,510 2,510 3,788 {1,278)

- - 857 {857)
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Gity of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund

Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes

TCRS Confribution
Employea Health Insurance
Worker's Compensation
Clothing/Uniform/Shoes
Electricity

Repair & Maint. Vehicles
SBubscriptions & Books
Education Seminars & Trainiag
Postal Service

Small Tools & Minor
Natural Gas & Propane
Madical Services

Cther Contracted Services
Office Supplias & Materials
Small Tools & Equipment
Office Equipment

Janitoriat Supplias

Uniformns

General Qperating Supplies
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel

Veh Parts/QiliFluid/Tires
Electrical, Plumbing & Hardware
Equipment Rental/Lease
Other Misc Expenses
Machinery & Equipment
lnsurance

Total Streel Lighting and Signs

Brush Pick-up & Snow Removal:
Wages & Salaries Permanent Employments
Overlime
Wages & Salaries Temporary Employees
Bonus-One Time
Christmas Bonus & Longevity
FICA
Medicare
TCRS Contribution
Employea Health Insurance
Workers Compensation
Reproduction and Printing
Unsmployment
Clothing/Uniform/Shees
Postal Service
Legal Nolices
Telephone Services
Medical Services
Other Professional Services
Repair/Maint Operations Equip.
Education Seminars & Training
Travel Business Expenses
Other Contracted Services
Office Supplies & Materials
Smalf Tools & Equipment
Janitoriat Supplies
Genesral Operating Supplies
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel
Veh Pads/OilfFluid/Tires
Concrate Products
Salt/Sodium Chioride
L.andfill Fee/Disposition Chgs
Other Misc Expanses
Motor Equipment
Insurance

in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Original Flnal Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {unfavorable}
4,703 4,783 0,328 {4,535)
10,622 10,622 18,127 {5,505)
1,526 1,625 2,144 (619}
755 755 562 183
600,000 600,000 568,231 33,769
500 500 198 302
200 200 - 200
400 400 100 300
- - 12 {12)
- - 29 (29)
- - 532 {532)
- - 109 {109)
- - 563 (563)
50 50 174 {124)
1,060 1,000 869 131
- 300 1,681 (781)
200 200 - 200
- 33 33 -
35,000 35,000 35,880 (989)
6,500 6,500 6,616 (118)
5,760 5,700 2,481 3,209
- 3,222 3,222 -
408 409 - 408
600 300 48 252
22,500 22,500 23,302 (802)
410 410 459 (49)
728,482 764,347 738,242 25,106
334,475 334,475 328,183 6,292
17,500 23,500 23,400 160
- 35,000 34,945 55
- 6,600 5,723 877
4,080 4,080 3,803 277
25,800 25,800 23,532 2,368
5,271 {5,271}
49,346 49,346 51,729 {2,383)
113,557 113,557 110,933 2,624
6,318 16,318 12,012 4,306
1,040 {1,040}
100 {106}
6,350 8,850 5,931 2,919
50 50 41 9
200 200 1,463 {1,263
- 1,000 1,165 {165}
- 1,080 734 269
700 760 700
- 14,200 14,713 {513}
400 400 135 265
500 500 500
250,000 500 475 25
100 100 100
- 4,500 2,718 1,782
150 150 150
- 2,000 695 1,305
65,600 65,000 78,960 {13,950}
66,100 66,100 61,576 4,524
8,500 - -
60,000 60,000 10,122 49,878
- 245,000 244,157 843
600 8006 18 583
120,000 120,000 110,159 9,841
9,370 9,370 10,409 {1,128}

Tha notes te financiai statements are an inlegral part of this statement.

36




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance-Budget and Actuai
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Original Finai Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {unfavorable)
Total Brush Pick-up & Snow Removal 1,147,196 1,208,006 1,144,230 64,766
Sidewalks: -
8mall Too!s & Mincr Equipment 250 250 - 250
Gasoline & Diese] Fuel 100 100 - 100
Veh Parts/OilfF luid/Tires 100 100 - 100
Concrete Products 20,500 20,500 1,783 18,717
Crushed Stone & Sand 2,650 2,650 2,088 561
Tetal Sidewalks 23,600 23,600 3,872 9,728
Traffic Devices:
Wages & Salaries Permanent Emp - 2,000 1,310 690
Overtime - 3,000 2,768 232
F.LCA. 244 (244)
Medicare 57 {57}
TCRS Contribution 596 {598}
Employee Health Insurance - - 749 {749}
Postal Service 29 {29}
Etectricity 30,000 30,000 33,802 {3,809}
Natural Gas & Propans - 500 500
Other Professional Services - 2,000 2,000
Repairs & Maint Communications - 5,000 5,000
Repair & Maint. Vehicles - 1,000 1,000
Repair & Maint Traffic Signals 160,000 53,750 39,662 14,088
Subscriptions & Books - 260 250
Membership & DBues - 1,000 210 790
Education Seminars & Training - 1,000 1,000
Trave] Business Expanses - 500 1,272 (772)
Other Confracted Services 30 (30)
Qffices Supplies & Materals - 500 500
Office Equipment - 500 500
General Operating Supplies - 5,000 3,604 1,196
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel - 2,500 2,500
Veh Paris/Oil/Fluid/Tires - 7.000 589 6,411
Parts, Traffic Signals - 15,000 8,545 6,455
Other Suppliss & Materials - 4,500 4,600
Totat Traffic Devices 130,000 135,000 93,672 41,328
Communication Shep:
Wages & Safaries Permanent Emp 76,502 78,502 77,788 714
Overtime 1,000 1,100 1,030 70
Bonus-One Time - 1,300 1,060 240
Christmas Bonus & Longevity 710 710 715 (5}
F.IC.A. 5,007 5,907 4,843 1,064
Medicare 1,092 {1,092}
TCRS Contribution 11,281 11,281 14,587 {306)
Employee Health Insurance 21,330 21,330 21,344 {14}
Worker's Compensation 3,080 3,050 2,288 762
Education Seminars & Tralning 1,500 1,500 1,500
Clothing/Uniform/Shoes 1,300 1,300 816 485
Postal Service 50 50 a8 12
Telephone Services 400 400 376 24
Medical Services A5 {45}
Other Professional Services 200 200 200
Repair & Maint. Vehicles 300 300 300
Repalr Maint Gperations Equip. 19 {19}
Repair & Maint Bldg/Grounds 500 500 500
Travel Business Expenses 500 500 500
Office Supplies & Materals 200 200 44 156
Generel Operating Supplies 60 60 48 12
Janitorial Supplies 7 @
Gasoline & Diesel Fyel 1,300 1,300 2,665 {1,365}
Veh Pars/Oil/Fiuid/Tires 2,600 2,000 169 1,831

The noles to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Clty of Morrstown, Tennessee
General Fund

Statement of Revenue , Expendifures, and Changes
in Fund Balance-Budget and Actfual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Criginat Final Favorahle
Budgst Budget Actual {unfavorablie}

Insurance 2,253 2,253 2,524 (271} -
Total Communication Shop 130,343 133,743 128,498 5,245
Pavement Management System:

Professional and Consulting -

Legal Notices - 3,200 2,581 819

Strest Infrastructure Imp 3,850,000 3,950,000 2,409,088 1,540,912
Total Pavement Management System 3,850,000 3,953,200 2,411,669 1,541,631
Heatth Inspection & Welfare {43400):

Education Seminars & Training 200 200 200

Travel Business Expenses 250 250 250

Small Tools & Equipment 600 600 601 (1)

Janitorial Supplies 300 300 300

General Operating Supplias 5,000 5,000 3,556 1,444

Gasoline & Diesel Fus! 3,750 5,750 4,789 961

Veh Parts/OilfFluid/Tires 1,600 1,500 941 559

Insurance 1,147 {1,147}
Total Health Inspection & Weifare 11,600 13,600 11,034 2,566
Health Inspection & Waelfare (44110);

Other Supplies - 296 208 -
Total Health Inspection & Welfare: - 288 296 -
Parks & Recreation Supervision:

Wages & Salaries Permanent Employses 251777 262,777 261,978 799

Overtime 150 150 150

Bonus-Cne Time - 3,000 2,650 350

GChristmas Bonus & Longevily 2473 2,473 2,496 (23)

FICA 19,450 19,450 16,298 3,162

Medicare 3,658 {3,658)

TCRS Contribution 37,146 37,146 38,537 {1,391)

Employee Heaith Insurance 53,696 58,696 57,925 771

Worker's Cornpansation 7,625 7,625 3431 4,194

Postal Service 3,600 3,600 3,139 461

Printing Services 300 300 383 {83)

tegal Notices 504 (504)

Medical Services 56 (56)

Subsuriptions & Books 242 (242)

Memberships & Dues 1,360 1,300 1,235 65

Education Seminars & Training 1,060 1,000 483 517

Travel Business Expenses 2,000 2,000 1,942 58

Other Contracled Services 450 450 434 16

Office Supplies & Materials 4,200 4,200 3,085 1,145

General Operaling Supplies 300 300 96 204

Equipment RenfaliLease 5,364 5,364 2,358 3,008

Insurance 1,126 1,128 1,262 {136)
Total Parks & Recreation Supervision 391,057 410,957 402,162 8,795
Playgrounds & Peograms;

Wages & Salaries Permanent Employees 97,770 104,770 101,494 276

Overtime 200 1,200 833 567

Wages & Salaries Temporary Employees 72,600 72,800 77,843 {5,243

Bonus-One Time - 2,600 2,228 374

Christmas Bonus & longevity 793 793 1,042 {219)

FICA 183,004 13,004 11,483 1,611

Madicare 2,555 {2,555)

TCRS Contribution 14,400 14,400 15,138 {7386)

Employee Health Insurance 31,854 31,854 30,478 1,376

‘The notes to financial statements ara an integral part of this stalement
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City of Morristown, Tennesses
General Fund
Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes

tn Fund Balance-Budget and Actuat
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {unfavorabie)
Woarker's Compensation 4,575 4,575 10,294 {5,719}
Unemployment ' 1,664 (1,664}
Reproduction and Printing ao (39}
Legal Services 66 (66}
Telephone Services 800 800 373 427
Other Professional Services 500 500 55 444
Memberships and Dues 7,700 15,200 14,732 468
Education Seminars & Training 250 250 250
Repalr & Maint Bldg/Grounds 1,500 1,500 704 796
Other Contractual - 39 39
Other Contracled Services 98,551 98,551 91,520 7,031
Small Tools & Equipment - 800 800
Other Supplies 143 {i43)
General Operating Supplies 58,200 58,200 36,316 21,884
Equipment Rentalflease 4,600 4,000 1,950 2,050
Motor Equipment 29,500 20,500 32,397 {2,897)
Insurance 14,268 14,268 13,560 708
Total Playgrounds & Programs 450,555 468,494 448,673 19,821
Parks & Maintenance:
Wages and Salaries Permanent Employess 317,642 322,642 322,293 349
Qveriime 2,000 2,000 1,798 202
Wages & Salaries Temporary Employeas 145,000 145,000 146,170 {1,170}
Bonus-One Time - 5,500 4,769 731
Christmas Bonus & Longevity 3,594 3,594 3,630 {36)
FICA : 36,540 36,540 29,143 7,397
Medicare 6,503 (6,503)
TCRS Contribution 46,933 46,933 47,958 (1,025)
Employee Health Insurance 53,696 8,696 28,281 415
Worker's Compensation 13,725 19,445 19,445
Reproduction and Printing 508 (508)
Unemployment 14,000 36,625 26,605 10,020
Repairs and Maintenance - 83 &3
Postal Service 18 (18)
Legal Notices 267 (267)
Telephone Services 1,500 1,500 1,875 {375}
Medical Services 557 (557}
Other Professional Services 1.000 1,000 1,000
Repair & Maint. Vehicles 2,000 2,000 142 1,858
RepairMaint Operations Equip. - 8,000 13,431 (4,431)
Repair & Maint. 8ldg/Grounds 32,800 32,800 26,014 6,786
Education Seminars & Training 100 100 100
Other contracted services 36,520 36,520 38,388 {1.868)
Small Teols & Minor - 44 44
Small Tools & Equipment 8,000 8,000 4,079 3,021
Janitorial Suppliss 11,800 11,800 10,154 1,646
General Operating Supplies 33,500 33,500 8,447 25,063
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 28,000 28,000 29,833 {1,833)
Veh Parts/QiliFluidfTires 13,000 4,000 3,867 33
Concrete Products 4,000 4,000 1,940 2,060
Crushed Stone & Sand 6,600 6,000 2,151 3,849
Electrical, Plumbing, & Hardware - 528 453 75
Other Supplies - 34 34 -
Construction Materials - 3,636 3,536 -
Splash pad supplies 2,000 2,000 1,008 991
Equipment RentallLease 2,080 2,000 2,052 (52)
Landfil Fee/Disposition Chgs 3,762 (3,762}
Other Misc Expenses 33 (33)
Building Structures - 11,400 10,180 1,210
Motor Equipment 20,000 20,000 18,080 1,920
Cther Capital Qutlay - 5,000 11,841 {6,841}
Insurance 16,179 16,179 18,128 {1,950}
Total Parks and Malntanance 851,529 955,979 897,841 58,138

The notes te financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




Soclal Services:
ALPS
Boys & Gids Club, Inc
CEASE
Gentral Senvices
GChild Advocacy
Daily Bread
Gins, Ing.
Helgping Hands
Keap America Beautiful
MATS
M H Child Care Centers
New Hope Recovery
Rose Center
Senior Citizens Center
Senior Citizen Hope Assistance
Stepping Out
Youth Emergency Shelter
Boys & Girls Club Swim Team
Tennossee Achigves
Crockett Tavern Assoctation

Tolal Social Services

Fixed Base Operaticns;
Memberships & Dues
Clothing/Uniform/Shoes
Postal Service
Legal Notices
Other Professional Services
Repair /Maint Operations Equip.
Repair & Maint Bldg/Grounds
Other Contractual
Education Serninars & Training
Other Contracted Services
Contracts With Other Agencies
General Oparations Supplias
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel
Veh Parts/Qil/Fluid/Tites
Electrical, Plumbing & Hardware
Office supplies and materials
Motor Equipmant
Gther Capital Qutlay
Grants & Subsidies

Tolal Fixed Base Operations

Bond Principal:
Bond Interest
Paying Agent Fees
Bebt Principal

Total Bond Principal

Miscellaneous expenditures
Health and Life Insurance

Special Appropriations:
Animal Contro)
E-911 District
Summer Feeding Program
Public Library

City of Morristown, Tennessee

General Fund

Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance-Budget and Actuai

for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Originat Final Favorable

Budget Budget Actual (tnfavorable)
9,580 9,508 8,560 -
15,675 15,675 15,675 -
16,625 16,625 16,625 -
5,000 5,000 5,000 -
950 956 950 -
4,750 4,750 4,750 -
11,400 11,400 11,400 -
7.125 7.i25 7,125 -
18,950 19,950 18,950 -
16,625 18,825 16,6256 -
22,800 22,800 22,800 -
4,750 4,750 4,750 -
11,875 11,875 11,875 -
47,500 47,500 47,500 -
4,750 4,750 4,750 -
1,425 1,425 1.425 -
30,875 39,875 30,875 -
10,000 16,000 10,000 -
9,000 9,000 4,500 4,500

- 9,000 8,125 875
250,575 259,575 254,200 5,375
40 40 80 (40)
2500 2,500 2,832 (332)
100 100 66 34
400 400 507 (107}
90,000 90,000 13,641 76,359
1,502 (1,502)

34,500 34,500 10,192 24,308
88 {88)
150 {150}
21,302 (21,302
40 (40}

8,000 8,000 866 7.134
25 25 - 25
1,500 1,500 148 1,352
126 {125)
18 (18)

72,000 72,000 58,358 13,642
885,000 885,000 3,675 881,325
2,500 {2,500)

1,084,065 1,084,065 116,680 877,975
934,391 234,391 214,823 719,768
40,000 40,000 56,821 {16,821}
1,440,317 1,440,317 1,349,339 99,978
2,414,708 2,414,708 1,611,764 802,024
- 774 - 771
133,632 133,532 133,532 -
187,250 187,250 175,257 11,993
90,000 20,000 47,233 42,767
243,600 243,600 243,600 -

The notes to financiat statements are an integrat part of this statement.

40




City of MorrIstown, Tennessee

General Fund

Statement of Revenue , Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance-Buidget and Actual

for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Economic Development
industrial Parks
Fast Track Grants

Tolal Special Appropriations

Total Revenues
Total Expenditures
Excess of revenues over{under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses);
Operating Transfers In
Qperating transfers Cut
Proceeds From Issuance of Bonds

Total Other Financing Sources-net

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over {unders) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund Balance July 1, 2011
Prior period adjustment

Fund Balance July 1, 2011 - as adjusted

Fund Belance June 30, 2012

The notes to financial stalements are an integral part of this slatement.

Varlance
Original Finat Favorahle
Budget Budget Actual {unfaverable)
185,500 356,500 356,373 127
350,000 350,000 325,000 25,000
- 461,000 460,104 898
1,189,682 1,821,882 1,741,099 80,783
28,174,917 30,571,770 20,452,121 {1,139,649)
32,146,211 34,102,231 29,326,684 3,635,918
(3,971,294} {3,530,461) 105,457 2,498,270
606,370 600,370 1,532,378 932,008
(663,077) (838,077) (1,184,908) {346,831)
4,034,000 3,769,000 3,750,000 {19,000}
3,871,293 3,531,203 4,097 470 566,177
e)} 832 4,202,927 3,062,447
7,444,079 7,444,079 7,444,079 2,044,130
- - 11,457,576 11,457,576
7,444,079 7,444,079 18,901,665 13,501,708
$7,444,078  $7,444.811 $23104,582  § 16,564,153
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Solid Waste Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Original Final . Favorable
Budget Budgot Actual {Unfavorahle)
Revenue:
Other Local Revenue:

Other County Revenue $ 241,500 $ 241,500 $ 241,492 $ (8)

Interest on Investments - - 94 94

Solid Waste Fees 1,261,984 1,321,184 1,300,875 {20,309)
Total Other Local Revenue 1,603,484 1,662,684 1,542,461 {20,223)
Expendilures:

Sanitation Department:

Wages & Salaries Permanent Employees 346,060 386,060 384,746 1,314

Overtime 6,000 6,000 2,131 3,880

Bonus-One Time - 6,000 5,299 701

Christmas Bonus & Longevity 4,727 4,727 4,823 {96}

FICA 26,854 26,854 23,678 3,176

Medicare - 5,400 5,331 69

TCRS Contribution 51,250 51,260 57,233 (5,883)

Employee Health Insurance 106,381 106,381 109,925 (3,544)

Worker's Compensation 15,250 15,250 11,435 3.816

Unemployment - - 358 {359)

Clothing/Uniform/Shoes 5,500 6,000 4,436 1,564

Postal Service 50 50 21 28

Printing Services - 1,000 166 844

Legal Notices 1,481 1,481 780 01

Telephone Services 400 900 378 522

Medical Services - 1,000 496 504

Other Professionat Services 1,000 1,000 246 54

Other Contracted Services 210 {210}

Education Seminars & Training 100 100 100

Office Supplies & Materiats 200 200 200

Office Equipment 200 200 200

General Operating Supplies - 1,000 400 600

Gasoline/Fuels/Lub 150 {150}

Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 62,000 75,000 74,207 793

Veh Paris/OQiVFluid/Tires 51,000 51,000 56,432 {5.432)

Solid Waster Containers 33,000 33.000 28,418 6,682

Insurance 10,752 10,752 12,048 {1,296)

Landfill Fee/Disposition Chgs 400,000 377,500 392,163 (14,663)

Other Misc Expenses 1,185 1,185 35 1,150

Motor Equipment 250,000 250,000 247,363 2,837
Total Sanitation Department 1,373,390 1,419,290 1,421,598 (2,308)
Landfilk:

Employee Health Insurance - 100 376 (276)
Tolat Landfill - 100 376 (278}
Curbside Recycle:

Wages & Salaries Permanent Employees 74,116 80,116 79,832 284

Overlime 750 750 833 (83)

Bonus-One Time - 1,200 1,080 140

Christmas Bonus & Longevily 1,660 1,660 1,675 (15}

FICA 12,578 12,578 4,977 7,601

Medicare 1,122 {1,122)

TCRS Contribution 11,071 11,071 11,197 {126)

Employee Health Insurance 21,318 21,3186 21,850 (534}

Tha notes to financial slatements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Solid Waste Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

QOrlginal Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Worker's Compensation 3,050 3,050 2,288 762
Clothing/Uniform/Shoes 1,300 1,300 1,180 120
Medical Services 84 (84)
Legal Notices 100 100 100
Telephone Services 50 50 50
Cther Professional Services 100 - 100 100
Travel Business Expenses 500 500 800
Cther Contracted Services 70,000 70,000 32,059 37,841
Office Supplies & Materials 300 300 353 {53}
Small Tools & Equipment 250 250 405 {155}
Janitorial Supplies 300 300 300
Gasoline/Fuels/Lub 60 (60}
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel 9,000 12,000 11,273 727
Veh Paris/OilfFluid/Tires 9,000 9,000 4,983 4,017
Solid Waste Containers 2,500 5,500 4,986 514
insurance 1,894 1,894 2,123 (229)
Total Curbside Recycle 219,835 233,035 182,337 50,688
Bond Principal:
Paying Agent Fees 516 {516)
Principal 259,659 259,659 234,290 25,369
Interest 16,049 16,049 17,757 {1,708}
Total Bond Principal 275,708 275,708 252,563 23,145
Depreciation
Depreciation Motor Vehicles 104,386 104,386 104,386
Total Expenditures 1,973,319 2,032,519 1,856,875 175,644
Excess of revenue over {under)
Expenditures (469,835) {469,835) {314,.414) 166,421
Other Financing Sources:
Bond Proceeds 250,000 250,000 250,000 -
Operaling Transfers In 219,835 219,835 218,835 -
Total other financing sources 469,835 469,835 469,835 -
Excess of revenues and other finanging
sources over (under) expenditures and ather
financing uses - - 156,421 {195,868}
Fund Balance July 1, 2011 386,165 386,165 386,165 -
Fund Balance June 30, 2012 $ 386,165 $ 386,165 $ 541,586 $ {195,868)

Tha notes to inancial slalements are an integrat par of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2012

LAMPTO
Adency Fund
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 203,659
Grants receivable 113,083
Total Assets 316,742

Liahilities
Accounts payable 111,886
Funds held for LAMPTO 204,856
Totai Liabilities $ 316,742

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 49




City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Morristown, Tennessee is a municipal corporation operating under the Council-Administrator form of
government, The City’s major operations include police and fire protection, parks and recreation, public works,
sewer, and general administrative services. In addition, the City owns and operates water, eleciric, and
broadband systems. The water, electric, and broadband systems are operated by a separate board appeinted by
the Mayor and approved by City Council,

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state
and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). Governments are also
required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through
November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Although the
City has the option to apply FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activities and
enterprise funds, the City has chosen not to do so. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP
and used by the City are discussed below.

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) unanimously approved Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Statements-Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments. Certain of
the significant changes in the staiement include the following.

+ The financial statemenis inciude:

s A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the City's overall
financial position and results of operations.

*» Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the City’'s aclivities, including
infrastructure (roads, bridges, etc.)

» A change in the fund financial statements to focus on major funds.

These and other changes are reflected in the accompanying financial statements (including notes to financial
statements). The City elected to implement both the general provisions and infrastructure provisions.

A. Reporting Entity
These financial statements present the City (the primary government). There are no component units.
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statemenis (i.e. the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in
net assets) report information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part, the
effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from the government-wide statements. Governmental activities,
which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which are funded to a significant extent by user fees and charges for support.

Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. The statement of
aclivities demonsirates the extent to which the direct expenses of each function or segment are offset by
program revenuss. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided or given by the function or segment and 2) granis
and contributions that are restricted for meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function
or segment.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
Although they are excluded from the government-wide financial statements, separate financial statements are
also provided for the fiduciary funds. Each major governmental enterprise fund is reported in a separate
column in the financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

C. Measurement, Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are reported when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and other resfricted revenues are recognized as revenue when all eligible requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal year.
Similar to the accrual basis of accounting, expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims and judgments, are recorded
only when payment is due. Compensated absences, consisting of unused vacation pay and other
compensated absences, are not included in the governmental basis financial statements, but are shown as a
reconciling item and included in the city-wide financial statements. Inventory costs are reported in the period
when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, intergovernmental revenue, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenue during the
current fiscal year. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except for those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Sofid Waste Fund is the fund used to pay for all solid waste expenditures. Transfers are made from
the General Fund to meet these expenditures.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The power system fund accounts for the activities of the government's electric distribution activities.
The water system fund accounts for the activities of the government’s water distribution activities.
The broadband fund accounts for the activities of the government's cable and telephone services.
The sewer system fund accounts for the activities of the government's sewage treatment operations.
The storm water system fund accounts for the aclivities of the government's storm water management
activities.
Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:
The Narcotics Fund and Solid Wasfe Fund are required by the State of Tennessee.
The CDBG Fund has been established to account for expenditure of CDBG grant funds.

Special revenue funds receive revenue from designated sources and transfers from the General Fund
and are expended for designated purposes.

The Fiduciary fund is an agency fund to account for the City's role as the fiscal agent for LAMPTO.
The Insurance fund is an internal service fund used to account for the City’s health insurance services.

Standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in
both government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not
conflict with or contradict guidance of the Government Accounfing Standards. Governments also have the
option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to this same limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidelines.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government's enterprise funds and
various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of ihe
enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The City also recognizes as revenues the
portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating
expenses of the enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted sources are available for use, it is the government's policy to use
restricted resources first and unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity
1. Deposits and investments

The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

2. Receivables and payables
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements and other activities that
are outstanding at the end of the year are referred to as either "due toffrom other funds” or “advances

toffrom other funds.” These have been eliminated in the government-wide statement of net assets.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY CF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

All frade receivables were considered collectible at June 30, 2012. Based on experience, an allowance
for uncollected property taxes of . 1% of the tax levies for the past ten years is maintained.

Property taxes are levied as of January 1™ on property values assessed as of the same date. Bills for
those taxes are usually mailed on July 1*. A 2% discount is offered for payment within thirty days after
the bills are mailed. On December 1, any unpaid taxes become delinquent and a penalty of 4.5% is
assessed with an additional 1% per month for additional delinquency. After one year and eleven months,
any unpaid taxes are sent to the County Clerk and Master for coftection.

3. [Inventories

All inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded
as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

4. Restricted Assefs

This represents constraints placed on the use of assets through external restraints imposed by creditors
(such as through debt covenants) or by grants, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments
or constraints imposed by law or enabling legislation.

5. Income Taxes

The Power and Water Systems, as well as the Sewer and Storm Water funds, are exempt from federal
and state income taxes since they are comprised of funds of the City, a nontaxable entity. Accordingly,
no provision for income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements. The
Broadband System is exempt from federal income taxes; however, it is required by TCA 7-52-606 to pay
franchise and excise tax to the State of Tennessee.

8. Capilal Assels

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (i.e., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets used in the government-wide
financial statements are defined as those having an individual cost of more than §5,000 and an estimated
life in excess of two years. Estimated useful lives for the major classes of equipment were as follows:

Infrastructure (roads and streets) 20 years
Automotive 8 years

Other mobile equipment 12-15 years
Computer equipment 5-7 years
Bulildings 15 - 50 years
Transmission equipment, fixtures and devices 25 — 50 years
Distribution transformers, meters, fixtures and devices 15— 50 years
Furniture, fixiures and equipment 5 - 25 years

Plant acquisition adjustments represent the excess of cost over net book value of utilities properties
acquired from other utilities districts. Such excess is amortized over the estimated useful life of the
related property (periods of up to 20 years).
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Gontinued)

7. Compensated Absences

It is the government's policy to permit employees to dccumulate earned but not unused sick pay benefits.
There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the government does not have a policy to pay
any amounts when employees separate from service with the government. All vacation pay is accrued
when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these
amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have mafured, for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements.

Morristown Ulilities Commission's policy is to recognize the cost of both vacation pay and sick leave
benefits as earned. In the event of termination or retirement, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated
vacation days. In general, accumulated vacation days are limited fo thirty days. Employees are
reimbursed for accumulated sick leave upon retirement or termination at an equivalent salary rate of
100%, 50% or 33-1/3% depending on the date earned. Sick leave accumulation is limited to ninety days.

8. Long-Term Obligations

in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts,
as well as issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premium and discounts, as well
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

9, Fund Equity
The City's fund balance is classified into the following categories:

Non-spendable Fund Balance — Fund balances reported as non-spendable in the accompanying financial
statements represent amounts for permanent fund principal restrictions, inventory, prepaid expenditures,
advances to other funds, and noncurrent notes receivable.

Restricted Fund Balance — Fund balances reported as restricted are the result of externally imposed
restrictions placed upon current resources by state statutes, creditors, bond covenants, donors, or
grantors.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Cormmitted Fund Balance —~ Fund balances reported as commitied are self-imposed restrictions placed
upon certain resources by the City Council and cannot be used for any other purpose untess formal
action is approved by the City Council.

Assigned Fund Balance ~ Fund balances reported as assigned are intended for certain purposes as
approved by City Council, or management. City Council has a fund balance policy that allows assigned
amounts to be re-assigned by City Council, or management.

Unassigned Fund Balance — In accordance with GAAP, the general fund is the only governmental fund
that reports an unassigned fund balance. The unassigned fund balance has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned {o a specific purpose within the general fund.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

When committed, assigned or unassigned fund balance amounis are available for use, it is the City's
policy to use the committed fund balance first; the assigned fund balance second; and then the
unassigned fund balance as needed.

10. Net Position of Morristown Ultilities Commission

e Netinvestment in capital assets — This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes
or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds or deferred inflows of resources at
year-end, the portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources attributable o the unspent
proceeds is not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. Rather, that portion
of the debt or deferred inflows of resources is included in the same net position component as the
unspent proceeds.

» Restricted — This component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and
deferred infiows of resources related to those assets.

» Unrestricted — This component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred ouiflows
or resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the
determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted components of net position.

NOTE 2 — RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-
wide statement of net assets.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance-total governmental
funds and the government-wide statement of net assets.

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balance-total governmental funds and changes in net assets
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of aclivities.

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all
governmental funds. All annual appropriations fapse at fiscal year-end.

Around the first of March, the budget process begins, with the City Administrator giving direction to
department heads. Toward the end of March, Department heads submit their proposed budgets, and
these are reviewed by the City Administrator, who makes the final decisions before submission to City
Council. City Council has work sessions and makes their revisions and publishes the proposed budget in
the local newspaper. Before June 30, City Council adopts the budget ordinance with two readings.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and depariment, but the budget ordinance is on
the fund level. The governmenf's department heads may make transfers of appropriations within their
department. The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level. Management can transfer amounts
between departments. City Council amended the original budget, and the original and final amounis are
presented in the financial statements included in this report.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Deposits and Investmentis

At year-end, deposiis and short-term investments were as follows:

Cash and
Eqguivalents
Government type funds $ 10,121,884
Enterprise type funds 24,082,759
Totals $ 35,104,643

As of June 30, 2012, all of Morristown Utility Commission's deposits were coverad by the bank collateral
pool administered by the State Treasurer. Banks participating in the pool report the aggregate halance of
their public fund accounts to the State. Collateral to secure these deposits must be pledged to the State
Treasurer on behalf of the bank collateral pool. The securities pledged to protect these accounts are
pledged in aggregate rather than against each individual account. Public fund accounts covered by the
pool are considered entirely insured or collateralized.

As of June 30, 2012, the Water System had cash in a bank account totaling $2,804,232 consisting of
unspent bond proceeds from the 2011 DWSRF Promissory Note described in Note 4J.

A portion of the Cily's deposits as of June 30, 2012, were not covered by the bank collateral pool
administered by the Treasurer of the State of Tennessee.

The City has repurchase agreements with Capital Bank and First Tennessee Bank whereby City funds
are invested overnight in securities of the U.S. Treasury Department. At June 30, 2012, the City had
$345,536 at Capital Bank and $6,767,831 at First Tennessee Bank invested in these securities and has
included these in cash and cash equivalents.

Short-term investments represent un-drawn bond proceeds.

City of Morristown's investments are invested in the following investment types which have been
aggregated into the following categories due to their similar nature.

Investment Type Par
Certificate of Deposit 4,500,000
Taxable Muni (Non-Callable) Securities 300,000
Taxfree Muni {Non-Callable) Securities 7,000,000
Treasury Securittes 19,200,000
Total 31,000,000

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the fonger the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the City of Morristown manages its exposure to
interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by
timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity
evenly over time, as necessary, to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

56




City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City of Morristown's investments (including

investments held by the bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following fable

that shows the distribution of the

City's investments by maturity:

Remaining Maturity {in months)

12 Months 13-24 25-60 More than

Invesiment Type Par or Less Months Months 60 Months

Certificate of Deposit 4,500,000 3,000,000 1,500,000 - -
Taxable Muni {Non-Callable) Securities 300,000 300,000 - - -
Taxfree Muni (Non-Callable} Securities 7,000,000 6,325,000 675,000 - -
Treasury Securities 19,200,000 19,200,000 - - -
Total 31,000,000 28,825,000 2,175,000 - -

The following table represents the interest rate risk of the invesiment portfolio of individual fixed income
securities. Using a simulation model, the portfolic was subjected to an immediate interest rate shock of

+/-300bp. The results in weighted average fotal is presented below which details the average maturity,

average market price, total unrealized gain (loss) and percentage price change from the current interest

rate environment.

Total Portfolioc Shock Table

Securies Count: 38 Totat Par. 31,000,000 Coupon: .908
Data Category Dn300 Dn200 Dn100 BaseCase Upi00 Up200 Up300
Mkt Value 31,150,969 31,150,069 31,150,065 31,107,931 31,018,125 30,920,379 30841672
Pct Change .14 .14 RY; : -28 -87 -86
Mkt Price 100.4869 100.4 869 100,484 1003481 1000584  99.7721 994892
Avg Life / Duration .33/.33 33/1.33 337.33 .33/.33  .33/33  .33/.33  .33/.33
Mid Yid . . . .16 1.08 2.01 293
Gain (Loss) $ $46,518 $46,518 $45,614 $3,.480  -$86327 -$175072 -$262779
The City of Morristown’s fixed income investments included no investments that are highly sensitive to
interest rate fluctuations {to a greater degree than a comparable Syr Fixed Rate Treasury Security) that
are not included in the interest rate disclosure.
Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is the measure by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rafing required by (where applicabie) the governing
code, City of Morristown’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of the year end
for each investment type:
Mirirum Not Required Rating As of Year End
Legal ToBe Moody's S&p Other

Investment Typs Par Rafing Rated A AALT-3) A AMA A A Uwaled _ CD
Ceriificale of Depasit 4,500,000 . - 4500600
Taxabla Muni (Non-Callable) Securities 300,000 - 300,000 - - - - -
Taxfree Muni {Non-Callable) Securites 7,000,000 250,000 4,165,000 - 1450000 4845000 -
Treasury Securiies 19,200,000 19,200,000 - 16.260.000
Tolaf 31,000,000 19450000 4,465,000 1,450,000 23845000 - 4,500,000
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of the City of Morristown’s total investments are

as follows:
Investment Repori
Issuer Type Amount % of Portfolio
U. S. Treasury U. 8. Treasuries 19,200,000 61.94 %

B. Receivables

Receivables as of year end for the government's individual major funds and nonmajor in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Solid Non-Major and [nternal
General Waste Other Funds  Enterprise Service Tofal
Receivables:
Taxes $ 9,073,036 $ - % - $ -3 - $ 9,073,038
Accounts 2,820,380 107,310 8,410 10,156,610 - 13,092,710
Grants - - 72,722 - - 72,722
Other 287,501 - - - 3,920 291,421
Gross receivables 12,180,917 107,310 81,132 10,458,610 3,920 22,529,889
Less: Allowance for bad debt (621,168} - - - - {621,168}
Net receivables $11,559,749 $107,310 § 81,132 $10,156610 $3,920 321,908,721

Included in taxes receivable of the General Fund is property taxes of $9,073,036 that were assessed as
of January 1, 2012, but will not be bilted until after June 30, 2012. There is an offsetting deferred income

for the above balance.
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C. Capital Assets
Capital assets of the City of Morristown’s primary government were as follows:
Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Increases Decreases June 30, 2012
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 7,658,184 $ - $ - $ 7,658,184
Consfruction in progress - - - -
Total capital assets not being depreciated 7,668,184 - - 7,656,184
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 18,716,233 61,743 (115,334) 18,662,642
Improvements other than buildings 11,842,751 262,600 - 12,105,351
Machinery and equipment 10,180,725 395,603 (676,033} 9,900,295
Infrastructure 42,858,357 641,487 - 43,499,844
Total capital assets being depreciated 83,598,066 1,361,433 (791,367} 84,168,132
Less: accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (6,438,951) {308,751) - (6,747,702
Improvements other than buildings {10,728,322) {98,075} - (10,824,397)
Machinery and equipment {8,300,744) {465,503) 876,033 (8,090,214)
Infrastructure {14,048,856) {2,108,063) - {17,057,919)
Total accumulated depreciation {40,414 873) {2,981,392) 676,033 {42,720,232)
Net capital assets being depreciated 43,183,193 {1,619,959) {115,334} 41,447,900
Total capital assets-government activities 3 50,841,377 $ (1,619859) § {115,334} $ 49,106,084
Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Increases Decreases June 30, 2012
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,272,839 $ 12,000 $ - $ 2,284,838
Construction in progress 10,270,878 9,709,163 14,240,547 5,739,494
Total assets not being depreciated 12,543,717 9,721,163 14,240,547 8,024,333
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements 19,847,266 76,001 - 19,923,267
Transmission and distribution 180,070,229 12,629,570 495,680 192,204,119
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 27,707,810 5,025,480 86,216 32,647,074
Total capital assets being depreciated 227,625,305 17,731,051 581,806 244 774,460
Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (4,953,785) (655,675} - (5,600,460}
Transmission and distribution (79,046,118} {6,066,826) 663,104 {84,449,840)
Furniture, fixtures and equipment {12,511,002) (1,942,307} 86,218 {14,367,091)
Total accumulated depreciation {96,510,905) {8,664,808) 749,322 {104,426,391)
Net capital assets being depreciated 131,114,400 9,066,243 {167,426} 140,348,069
Total net capital assets - business
type activities 143,658,117 18,787,406 14,073,121 148,372,402
Total net capital assets $ 194,490,494 3 17,167,447 $ 13,957,787 $ 197,478,486
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Depreciation expense was charged to government activities as follows:

General government . $ 221,705
Public safety 586,334
Public works 2,118,781
Parks and recreation 120,443
Airport ) 440,410

Total 3 3,487,673
Sewer $ 2,441,052
Storm Water Fund 141,535
Water and Electric Power 5,222,080
Broadband 860,141

Total $ 8,654,808

The provision for depreciation does not include depreciation on transportation equipment. Those
amounts are reported as operations expenses and are included in the Statements of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to expense as
incurred. The depreciation on transportation equipment not included in depreciation expense previously
noted was $23,404 for the Power System, $46,563 for the Water System, and $71,009 for the Broadband
System.

D. Accounts payable and other current liabilities:

Governmental Business Type Total
Accounts payable $ 247,389 $ 12,908,202 $ 13,155,591
Accrued payrofl and other liablilities 100,405 2,773,672 2,874,077
Total $ 347,794 $ 15,681,874 $ 16,029,668

E. Interfund receivables, advances, payables, and transfers
The interfund receivables and payables as of June 30, 2012, were as follows:

The first two items represent temporary operating cash advances between the Power System, Water
System, and Broadband System.

The next two items represent the Sewer Fund's receivables from the Storm Water System which resulted
from the Storm Water System overdrawing their share of the common operating bank account used by all
City Funds. The General Fund’s receivable from Power System is the balance of a loan made in a prior
year.

The interfund advances were on a longer-term basis and represent proceeds of General Obligation bond
issues that were funneled to Morristown Utility System.
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Receivable From Payable to Purpose Amount
Broadband System Power System Operating and Maint. Costs $ 6,749,697
Power System Water System interfund Loan 626,883
Storm Water System Sewer System QOperating Costs 442,174
Storm Water System General Fund Operating Costs 5,163
Power System General Fund nterfund Advance 1,160,356

$ 8,984,273

The interfund transfers were as follows:

Fund Purpose TransferIn  Transfer Out
Governmental:
General Fund Operating Transfer $1,532,378 $ 1,302,409
Other Funds ‘Operating Transfer 670,576
Agency Fund:
LAMPTO Operating Transfer 117,501
Enterprise Funds:
Power System In lieu of tax 895,890
Water System in lieu of tax 36,120
Storm Water in lieu of tax 14,187
Sewer In lisu of tax 296,183
Storm Water Administrative Expenses 15,000
Sewer Administrative Expenses 274,998
Internal Service Fund:
insurance Operating Transfer 514,332

$2,834,787 $ 2,834,787

All iterns represent duly appropriated operating transfers. The transfers from the Power Fund and Water
Fund to the General Fund are for in lieu of tax payments that are required to be accounted for as
transfers by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Transfers from the Sewer and Storm Water
Funds were for in lieu of tax payments and reimbursement of administrative costs.

61




City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notfes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 4 ~ DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

F. Post-Retirement Healthcare Benefits
City of Morristown — excluding Water, Electric, and Broadhand Systems
An actuarial valuation made as of July 1, 2010, is presented as follows:

1) A BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE RETIREE MEDICAL, DENTAL AND VISION INSURANCE PLAN:

Type of Coverage:

a. Plan Types: Self-funded Medical, Dental and Vision

b. Eligibility: Age 55 and 10 years of service or 30 years of service
until Medicare eligible

¢. Benefit/Cost Sharing: Employer pays 85% of medical premium and 100% of dental and
vision premiums. For employees retiring after June 30, 2010,
the employer will pay 2.84% of medical premiums for each
year of service up to a maximum of 85%.

d. Spouse Benefit: Yes, while retiree is eligible

e. Surviving Spouse Benefit: None
f. Annual Premiums: Average Medical: Retiree $4,399; Spouse $4,573

Average Dental: Retiree $220; Spouse $548
Average Vision: Retiree $75; Spouse $34
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2) GASB 45 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS — ESTIMATED

71112011 -
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 6/30/2012
1. Annual Required Contribution ARC) $ 468,493
2. Interest on net OPEB Obligation -
3. Adjustment to ARC -
4. Annual OPEB Cost (expense} {1 +2 + 3) 468,493
5. Contributions made (assumed middle of year) 468,493
8. Increase in net OPEB Obligation (4 - 5) -
7. Net OPEB Okbligation - beginning of year -
8. Net OPEB Obligation - end of year (6 + 7) $ -

*Contribution made was assumed fo equal Expected Benefit Payments

The annual OPEB Cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost coniributed to the plan, and the Net
OPEB obligation for fiscal years ending 2011 and 2012 are as follows:

Percentage of

Fiscat Annual OPEB Net
Year Annual - Cost OPEB
Ending OPEB Cost Contributions Obligation
6/30/2012 $ 468,493 100.0% $ -
6/30/2011 $ 455797 100.0% $ -
6/30/2010 $ 473,774 100.0% $ -
6/30/2009 $ 518,380 100.0% $ -

Funded Status and Funding Progress

UAAL as a
Actuarial Percentage of
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Covered
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Payroll
Valuation Assets {AAL) {UAAL}) Ratio Payroli (AAL}
Date (a) (b) {b-a) (a/b) (e} {{b - a¥c)
1172007 % - $5,333,339 $5,333,339 0.0% NA N/A
07/01/10 212913 5,093,035 4,880,122 4.2% NA NiA
Methods and Assumptions
Funding Interest Rate 7.00%
2010 Medical/lRx Trend Rates 8.00%
Ultimate Medical/Rx Trend Rates 5.00%
Year Ultimate Trend Rates Reached 2013
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Annual Payroll Increase 2.50%
The Remaining Amortization Period at June 30, 2012 27.74 years
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G. Morristown Utility System (Water, Electric, and Broadband Systems) Post-Employment Benefits

The Systems provide post-employment benefits (OPEB), in accordance with its employee benefits plan,
to ali eligible retirees.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the accruals of liabilities for OPEB over the
employment of participants rather than as premiums are paid. The total expense recognized totaled
$85,157, $17,891, and $25,112 for the Power Water, and Broadband Systems, respectively.

The Systems’ OPEB is a single employer defined benefit plan and is not required fo issue a separate
financial report.

Plan Description

The Systems provide medical, dental, and life insurance benefits to retirees. Employees who retire at
age 55 with 10 years of service or at age 65 with five years of service are eligible to participate. The
Systems pay 100% of the retiree’s medical, dental, and fife insurance premiums. In addition, the Systems
pay 60% of the retiree’s dependent's medical premiums. The retiree’s spouse is also eligible for medical
benefits (same as retiree) as long as the retiree is eligible (there are no surviving spouse benefits). The
fife insurance benefit available to retirees is $5,000. The average annual medical and dental premium is
$4,800 and $319, respectively.

Funding Policy

The Systems fund the Plan on a pay-as-you-go basis and do not intend to contribute in excess of the
annual premiums. The annual required contribution (ARC) is an actuarially determined amount that
represents a level of funding which, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each
year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years.

Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligation

Power Water Broadband
1. Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 104,704 $ 30187 % 25491
2. Interest on net OPEB Obiligation 7,337 740 2,497
3. Adjustment to ARC (8,449) {853) (2,676)
4, Annual OPEB Cost (expense) (1 +2 + 3) 103,592 30,084 25,112
5. Contributions made {assumed middle of year) {18,435) {12,193) -
8. Increase in net OPEB Obligation (4 - 5) 85,157 17,841 25112
7. Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year 183,437 18,504 62,428
8. Net OPEB Obligation - end of year (6 + 7) $ 268594 § 36395 $ 87,540
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The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net OPEB

obligation is as follows:

Percentage of

Annual OPEB Net
Annual Cost OPEB
Fund OPEB Cost Contributed Obligations
2012
Power System $ 103,592 18.0% $ 268,504
Water System 30,084 41.0% 36,395
Broadband System 25,112 0.0% 87,450
2011
Power System 75,695 44.0% 183,437
Water System 22,920 81.0% 18,504
Broadband System 17,318 0.0% 62,428
2010
Power System 72,291 34.0% 141,047
Water System 22 191 75.0% 14,106
Broadband System 16,271 0.0% 45 110
Funding Status and Funding Progress
UAALas a
Actuarial Percentage
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded of Covered
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Payrall
Vaiuation Assets (AAL} {UAAL) Ratio Payroll (AAL)
Sysfem Dats (a) {b) (b -a) (alb) (¢} {{b-aYc)
Power THI2011 § - 3 927,038  § 927,036 00% $ 4,210,185 2%
Water 714201 - 288,818 288,518 0.0% 1,137,002 25%
Broadband 7HI20H1 64,160 64,160 0.0% 927,632 7%

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The actuariai methods and assumptions used were applied consistently for the Power, Water and
Broadhand Systems and were as follows:

Funding Interest Rate 4.00%
2009 Medical Trend Rates 9.00%
Ultimate Trend Rate 5.00%
Year Ultimate Trend Rate Reached 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Annual Payroll Growth Rate 2.50%
Remaining Amortization Period at June 30, 2012 (closed) 26.12 years

The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes io the financial siatemenis
presents multi-year trend information about the change in actuarial value of plan assets relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
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The mortality rates are from the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected to 2010 with projection
scale AA. [t was assumed that the following percentages of eligible employees would retire each year:

Age Rate
55-59 3%
60-64 20%
65-69 15%
70+ 100%

It was also assumed that employees would terminate employment with the rate in the following table:

Age Male Female
20 6.3% 7.5%
25 5.0% 6.0%
30 3.6% 4.4%
35 2.3% 2.9%
40 1.0% 1.4%
45 0.9% 1.2%
50 0.8% 1.0%
55 0.6% 0.7%
It was assumed that health care cost would increase in accordance with the trend rates in the following
table:
Vision and
Medical Dental
Year Rates Rafes
2012 8.0% 5.0%
2013 7.0% 5.0%
2014 6.0% 5.0%
2015 5.0% 5.1%

It was assumed that 100% of the current active employees covered under the active plan on the day
before retirement would enroll in the retiree medical plan upon retirement. It was also assumed that 10%
of the male and 10% of the female employees who elect retiree health coverage for themseives would
also elect coverage for their spouse upon retirement. It was assumed that male spouses are three years
older than their wives and female spouses are three years younger than the retiree. For current retirees,
actual census information was used.

The preparation of the actuarial liabilities calculated requires management to make assumptions

discussed above. Due the use of these assumptions, actual results may differ from the estimates. The
discount rate considers inflationary rate adjustments.
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H. Deferred ltems

Deferred items consisted of the following:

Governmental Business-Type Total
Taxes due after June 30, 2012 $ 9,862,266 $ - 8 9,862,266
Broadband - 482,042 482,042
Total $ 9,862,266 % 482,042 § 10,344,308

I. Other Liabilities

Included in non-current liabilities is a liability for compensated absences in the sewer system of $37,492,
storm water system of $22,234, and in the general fund of $1,036,264. In addition, Morristown Utility
System has a capital lease payable of $3,759 which is included in current liabilities.

Governmental Business

Activities Activities
Balance-July 1, 2011 $ 1,086,225 $ 95,990
Increases - 19,174
Decreases {49.961) -
Balance-June 30, 2012 $ 1,036,264 $ 115,164

As an other long-term liability, compensated absences for the Governmental Activities is
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources of the General,
Narcotics, and Solid Waste funds.

J. Capital Debt

Power System

During 2003, the Power System entered into a promissory note (2003 Promissory Note} with the City in
the principal amount of $2,500,000. The note was issued to the Commission with proceeds from the
City's loan agreement with the Public Building Authority of Sevier County Bonds. Principal is payable in
annual installments ranging from $175,000 to $250,000 through 2018. Interest is payable quarterly at
variable rates for 30 day commercial paper with a AA bond rating as determined by Standard and Poor
{0.35% per annum as of June 30,2012).

The City has an outstanding promissory note (2008 Promissory Note) with the Public Building Authority of
the City of Clarksville, Tennessee, at a variable interest rate as defined in the agreement, payable
annually through May 2035. The note provides for a variable interest rate, which is determined by the
Remarketing Agent for the securities. In its sole discretion, the Remarketing Agent resets the minimum
rate of interest that is necessary to remarket all of the outstanding bonds at par plus accrued interest if
settled on a non-interest payment date, based on market conditions. Many factors are considered when
determining the inferest rates, and there is no standard formula used to determine them. The City has
allocated the responsibility of the 2008 Promissory Note between the Power System and the Broadband
System based upon their proportionate assets acquired with proceeds from the note.
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Pericdically, ihe Power System acquires additional service areas from local elective cooperatives
servicing Hamblen County residents. As a result of the acquisitions of service areas, the Power System
pays the cooperatives a calculated fee {Cooperative Notes) over a ten-year period based on lost
revenues of the cooperatives.

The Power System has a line of credii agreement with a local bank which provides for advances of up o
$1,000,000 at an annual interest rate of 4% and matures in January 2013. There are no amounts
outstanding under this arrangement as of June 30, 2012.

Water System

The Water System has outstanding a promissory note (2001 Promissory Note) with the City. The note
was issued fo the Water System with proceeds from the Cily’s loan agreement with the Public Building
Authority of Sevier County, Tennessee. Interest is payable semi-annually at a variable rate {0.49% as of
June 30, 2012} as determined by the City. Final principle payment of $100,500 is due on June 1, 2013.

The City has ouistanding a reveolving fund loan agreement (2002 DWSRF Promissory Note) with the State
for the repayment of a principal amount up to $10.5 million for the purpose of expanding an existing water
tfreatment facility of the Water System. The Water System drew a tofal of $10,492,582 hefore closing out
the project during 2007. Interest is payable monthly at an annual perceniage rate of 2.61% on the
outstanding balance. Principal is also payable monthly in varying amounts from $39,857 in July 2012 fo
$55,815 in April 2026. The note is payable from revenue derived from the operations of the Water
System.

The Water System has ouistanding a promissory note (2004 Promissory Note} with the City. The note
was issued to the Commission with proceeds from the City’s loan agreement with the Public Building
Authority of Blount County, Tennessee. Interest is payable semi-annually at variable rates (2.91% as of
June 30, 2012) as determined by the City. Final principal payment of $70,000 is due on June 1, 2013.

During 2010, the City eniered into a loan agreement (2009 promissory note) with the Public Building
Authority of the City of Clarksville in the principal amount of $7,500,000. Proceeds from the loan
agreement were used for various capital projects of the Water System. Interest is payable quarterly at a
fixed rate of 3.38%. Principal is payable in varying amounts from $285,000 in December 2012 to
$505,000 in December 20289.

During 2011, the Cily entered into a $2,000,000 promissory note (2011 DWSRF Promissory Note)
between the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation and the Tennessee Locai
Development Authority to fund a remote-read water meter project. Of the proceeds, $800,000 will be
provided as a grant via loan forgiveness through the State. As of June 30, 2012, $1,200,000 had been
drawn on the loan, net of forgiveness of $800,000.
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Broadband System

The Broadband System was allocated a portion of the 2008 Promissory Note based on the assets

acquired from the proceeds of the note.

In addition, the Broadband System has an interfund note

payable to the Power System. In accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated 7-52-603(b), a fine of
credit was executed allowing the Broadband System to borrow up to $7,000,000 from the Power System
at an interest rate equal to the highest rate earned on Power System investments (0.25% at June 30,
2012). interest incurred on the loan amounted to $21,789. The agreement was approved by TVA as
required by the Power Contract and provides for the repayment of all advances along with accumulated
interest by September 2024.

Future Debt Maturities:

Governmental Type

Business Type

Year Ending Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 $ 1,675,805 $ 951,763 3.577,114 $ 3428073
2014 1,136,023 885,812 4,352,357 3,444 479
2015 1,173,563 842,588 4,262,347 3,304,733
2016 1,211,533 797,562 4,358,450 3,160,704
2017 1,225,614 750,684 4,467,775 3,006,071
2018-2022 6,808,375 2,977,362 22,775,866 12,624,501
2023-2027 7,155,404 1,495,469 24,868,240 8,271,345
2028-2032 2,177,591 195,439 18,449,307 3,764,864
2033-2037 486,287 20,328 10,688,522 944,950
2038-2042 - - - -
Totals $ 23,050,285 $ 8,917,007 $ 97,799,978 $ 41,949,720
Foliowing are debt requirements for capital leases:
2013 3,758
Total future minimum lease payments 3,758
Less amounts representing interest -
Present value of future minimum lease payments
(including $3,759 classified as current) 3,759
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

K. Prior period adjustment:

Prior period adjustments were necessary fo correct capital assets presented on the government-wide
statement of net assets and sewer and storm water funds in the business-type activities due to an
analysis of capital asset items upon implementation of a new software program. The general fund had
not shown the reail estate — non-operating as an asset item in the past. However, real estate — non-
operating has been shown correctly on the government-wide statement of net assets. A correction for an
amount due to the general fund from the sewer fund was made. Net assets were transferred out of the
governmental activities to create an internal service fund for insurance. Morristown Utility Commission
has corrections to net position of power, water, and broadband due to the early implementation of GASB
65. Details of the effect on beginning net assets/net position is as follows:

Government-wide Fund Statements
Governmental  Business-type General Internal Service
Aclivities Activities Fund Insurance

Net Assets - June 30, 2011 $ 50,302,371 $ 05,215,326 $ 7,444,079 $ -
Prior period adjustment;
Present real estate -

non-operating 11,729,622
Correction - due to

general fund (271,946) 271,946 (271,946)
Correction - capital assets (1,089,173} 83,455
Transfer - internal service

fund (514,332) 514,332
Recognition of inventory -

storm water fund 182,856
Business-type activities - early

implementation of GASB 65 (772,125)
Total prior pericd adjustment {1,875,451) (233,868) 11,457,576 514,332

Net Assets - June 30, 2011, as adjusted  § 48,426,920 $ 94,981,458 $ 18,901,655 $ 514,332

L. State street aid activities:

The following is a summary of State Street Aid activity within the General Fund for the year ended June

30, 2012:
Reserve fund balance, July 1, 2011 $ 636,961
Add — state gasaoline tax revenues 750,936
Less — state expenditures: Paving 124,943
Reserve fund balance, June 30, 2012 $1,262,954

M. Other Disclosures:
A. Commitments and Contingencies:
At June 30, 2012, the City of Morristown had the following commitments:
The sewer treatment contract with Veolia is for treatment services rendered for the Turkey Creek
Treatment Plant, pump stations, Lowland Treatment Plant, and administration of the City’s

pretreatment program. The contract expired on June 30, 2012, but was extended for ninety days.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Contingent Liabilities
The government is the defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not

presently determinable, in the opinion of the government's counsel the resolution of these matters will
not have a material effect on the financial condition of the government.

B. Concentration of Credit Risk

The City and the Morristown Utility Commission provide electric, water, broadband, and sewer service
to customers in the City of Morristown and Hamblen County. Customers include residential,
commercial, and heavy industrial users. Residential customers for the Power and Broadband
Systems are required to place deposits that approximate one month’s account balance. Loss
experience has not been significant to the operations for these services.

N. Enterprise Funds
The following Enterprise Funds have been created to provide various services to the general public:

Power Fund — established to account for the operation of the MUS Electric Department.

Broadband Fund - established to account for the operation of the MUS Broadband, internet and telecom.
Water Fund - established to account for the operation of the MUS Water Department.

Sewer Fund — established to account for the operation of the City of Morristown Sewer Fund.

Storm Water Fund - established to account for Storm Water mitigation activities of the City of Morristown.

Power Contract

The Power System has a power contract with the Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) whereby the Power
System purchases all of its electric power from TVA and is subject to certain restrictions and conditions as
provided in the contract. The contract with TVA expires in 2014.

Tennessee Valley Authority Home Insulation Program

The Power System participates in the TVA energy right® Residential Program which provides interest-
bearing loans to the Power System’s customers for energy-efficient equipment and other weatherization
measures. Under the program, the Power System collects payments on new and previously existing
loans and forwards payments to a financial institution pursuant to guidelines established by TVA.

Data Transport Agreement

During July 2010, the Broadband System entered into a 60 month data transport service agreement with
Education Networks of America to provide internet services at $11,500 per month. In July 2011 the
agreement was amended which resulted in an additional service fee of $3,000 per month; however, no
other terms of the contract were modified.

0. Early Implementation of GASB 65
In 2012, the Systems adopted GASB 65 which requires debt issuance costs to be recognized as an
expense in the period incurred. The cumulative effect of this change was to decrease net position by

$5627, 518 for the Power System, $74,382 for the Water System, and $170,225 for the Broadband System
and is shown as a reduction of net position as of July 1, 2011.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)

P. Net Position

Net position for the Power, Water, and Broadband Systems consist of the following as of June 30, 2012:

Net invesiment in capital assets consisis of the following:
Net capital assets
Restricted unspent bond funds
Less related liabilities:
Due to other fund - for capital
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Current portion of long-term debt
Long-term debt, less current portion
Total related liabilities
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted net position consists of all other items in the balance sheets not refiected above.

Q. Joint Ventures

Power Water Broadband
System System System

54,405,023 39,351,105 5,880,159
- 2,904,232 -

- - 5,295,733

- - 3,759

606,061 979,060 113,922
15,885,650 15,241,951 4,603,424
16,491,711 16,221,011 10,016,838
37,913,312 26,034,326 {4,136,679)

Morristown-Hamblen County Library — The City of Morristown and Hamblen County jointly own the
Morristown-Hamblen Library. Each appoints an equal number of members to its board of directors.
The City contributed $243,600 for the library operation during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

Hamblen County-Morristown Solid Waste Authority — The City of Morristown and Hamblen County
jointly own the Hamblen County-Morristown landfill. Each appoints an equal number of members to
the board of directors. This operation is self-sufficient in that users are charged for services renderad.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the City was charged $219,835.

City of Morristown does not have an equity inferest in any of the ahbove-noted joint ventures.
Complete financial statements for the Morristown-Hamblen Library and Hamblen County-Morristown
Solid Waste Disposal System can be obtained from their respective administrative offices at the

following addresses:

Morristown-Hamblen Library

417 West Main Street
Morristown, TN 37814

Hamblen County-Morristown Solid

Waste Disposal System

P.C. Box 2108
Morristown, TN 37816
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

R. Pension Plan Information

CITY OF MORRISTOWN

Plan Description

Employees of Morristown are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated
Retirement System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability
benefits. Benefits are determined by a formula using the member’s high five-year average salary and
years of service. Members become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with ten years of service or at
any age with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to vested members at the
age of 55. Disability benefits are available to active members with five years of service who become
disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment. There is no service requirement for disability that
is the result of an accident or injury occurring while the member was in the performance of duty.
Members joining the system after July 1, 1979, become vested after ten years of service and
members joining prior to July 1, 1979, were vested after four years of service. Benefit provisions are
established in state statute found in Title 8, Chapter 34-37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA).
State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General Assembly. Political subdivisions such as
Morristown pariicipate in the TCRS as individual entities and are liable for all costs associated with
the operation and adminisiration of their plan. Benefit improvements are not applicable to a political
subdivision unless approved by the chief governing body.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the PSPP. That report may be obtained by writing fo Tennessee
Treasury Department, Consolidated Retirement System, 10™ Floor Andrew Jackson Building,
Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at hitp:/iwww.tn.govitreasury/tcrs/PS/.

Funding Policy
MORRISTOWN requires employees to contribute 5.0 percent of earnable compensation.

MORRISTOWN is required to contribute at an actuariaily determined rate; the rate for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2012, was 14.61% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan
members is set by state statute. The contribution requirement for MORRISTOWN is established and
may be amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ending June 30, 2012, MORRISTOWN's annual pension cost of $1,848,357 to TCRS
was equal to MORRISTOWN's required and actual contributions. The required contribution was
determined as part of the July 1, 2009, actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost
method. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) rate of return on
investment of present and future assets of 7.5 percent a year compounded annually, (b) projected
3.0 percent annual rate of inflation, {(c) projected salary increases of 4.75 percent (graded) annual
rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to the effects of inflation on
salaries), (d) projected 3.5 percent annual increase in the Social Security wage base, and (e)
projected post retirement increases of 2,5 percent annually. The actuarial value of assets was
determined using techniques that smooth the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of total
investments over a ten-year period. MORRISTOWN's unfunded actuarial accrued fiability is being
amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at July 1,
2009 was 24 years. An actuarial valuation was performed as of July 1, 2011, which established
contribution rates effective July 1, 2012.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
June 3¢, 2012 1,848,357 100.00% $ -
June 38, 2011 1,874,073 100.00% $ -
June 30, 2010 1,748,148 100.00% $ -

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 79.31 percent funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $63.09 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $50.04
million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $13.05 million. The covered
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan} was $12.55 million, and the ratio of
the UAAL to the covered payroll was 103.97 percent.

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RS1) following
the notes to the financial statements, present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial
values of the plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AALs for benefits.

Actuarlal
Accrued UAALasa
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage of
Actuarial Value of {AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Plan Assets - Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payrotl Payroll
Date (a) )] (b - {a) {a'b) (c) {b - a)e)
07701 /14 50041 % 63,093 § 13,052 7331% % 12554 103.97%
07/01/09 42,923 B1,271 8,348 83.72% 13,532 61.69%
o7 Ko7 41,850 50,438 8,588 82.97% 13034 65.89%

{Dollar amounts in thousands}
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Morristown Utility System’s Retirement Plan

The Systems share in a defined contribution retirement plan, Morristown Utilities Commission
Employee Refirement Plan (the Plan), covering substantially all employees. The Commission is the
administrator of the Plan and is responsible for establishing or amending the Plan provisions and
contribution requirements.

Power System:
% of % of
Total Coverad Employer Covered Employee Covered
Payroll Payroli Contributions Payroll Contributions Payroll
2012 $ 4,367,221 § 4,207,127 $ 631,069 15% $ 309,463 7%
2011 $ 4,230,281 $ 4,024,616 % 603,622 16% $ 290,525 7%
2010 $ 3,859,074 $ 3,803,784 $ 569,167 15% $ 276,691 7%
Water System:
% of % of
Total Covered Employer Covered Employee Covered
Payroll Payrall Contributions Payroll Contributions Payroil
2012 $ 1,266,713 $ 1,248,179 $ 183,889 15% L 80,157 6%
2011 $ 1,216,306 $ 1,180,455 $ 173,905 16% $ 78,757 7%
2010 $ 1,190,266 $ 1,162,362 $ 171,675 15% 8 73,953 6%
Broadband System:
% of % of
Total Covered Employer Covered Employee Covered
Payroli Payroll Confributions Payroli Contributions Payroll
2012 $ 1,194,775 $ 915,333 $ 136,162 16% $ 48,741 5%
2014 $ 964,974 $ 749,847 $ 112,477 15% $ 44,351 6%
2010 $ 826,101 $ 780,272 5 117,041 15% % 49,476 6%

Under the Plan terms, the Systems will match participant contributions up to 3% of the participant’s
salary and may also contribute an additional amount to the Plan at its discretion. During 2012, the
discretionary contribution amounted to 12% of the participants’ salary. Participants are not required but
may coniribute up to a total of 75% of their salary subject to IRS limitations. All employees who have
completed one year of service as defined by the Plan and who have atlained the age of 21 are eligihle
to participate in the Plan. Participanis are 100% vested in the employer contributions when they are
made.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

S. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and injuries of employees for which the City carries
commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties. The City has not experienced an
insurance settlement in excess of insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The City
bears the risk of loss up to the deductible amounis which are disclosed in the accompanying
Statistical Section.

NOTE 5 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to June 30, 2012, the sewer treatment contract with Veolia ended on June 30, 2012, but was
extended for ninety days. The new contract is effective October 1, 2012, and is separated into two parts. Part
one is a three-year agreement for the Turkey Creek Treatment Plant, Lowland Treatment Plant, and industrial
pretreatment. Part two is a one-year agreement for the pump station. Morristown Utility Commission has been
approved to take over the part of the contract for the pump station effective February 1, 2013.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Required Supplementary Informafion
June 30, 2012

Schedule of Funding Progress for Morristown, Tennessee (Exciuding Moriistown Utility Commission)

{Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial
Accrued UAMAL as &
Actuartat Liability Unfunded Percentage of

Actuarfal Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Govered Covered
Valuation Plan Assets - Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroil Payroll

Date {a) {b) (h} - (a) {a/b) {c) (b - a)ic)
07/04/14 $ 50041 & 83,093 3 13,052 7831% $ 12,554 103.97%
07/01/09 42,923 51,271 8,348 83.72% 13,532 61.69%
07i/07 41,850 50,438 8,588 82.97% 13,034 85.88%

{Dollar amountis in thousands}
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2012

Total NonMajor

Community Governmental
Narcotics Developmeant Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 38438 3 22,337 % 60,775
Receivables {net of allowance
for uncollectibies) 8,410 72,722 81,132
Total assets $ 46848 $ 95058 % 141,907
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANGCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - 8 - 3 -
Unearned revenue 35,554 - 35,654
Total Habllittes 35,554 - 35,554
Fund balances:
Reserved - - -
Unreserved fund balance(deficit) 11,284 95,059 106,353
Total equity 11,294 95,058 106,353
Total liabilities and fund equity $ 46,848 ] 95,058 3 141,907

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2012

Revenues
Licenses, permits and finas
Intergovernmental

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current:
Administration
Programs
Contracts with other agencies
Total general government
Public safety:
Police
Total public safety
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenue over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources and uses

iNet change in fund halance

Fund balance- beginning, as previously stated

Fund balance- beginning, as restated

Fund balance-ending

Total NonMajor

Community Governmental
Narcotics Development Funds
$ 109,450 - $ 109,450
9,487 641,280 650,777
118,947 641,280 760,227
- 100,104 100,104
- 582,626 582,626
- 31,377 31,377
- 714,107 714,107
465,464 - 465,464
465,464 - 465,464
465,464 714,107 1,179,671
{346,517) {72,827} {419,344)
353,096 97,645 450,741
353,006 97,645 450,741
8,579 24,818 31,397
4,715 70,241 74,956
4,716 70,241 74,956
$ 11,294 95,058 § 106,353

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

81




City of Morristown, Tennessee
Community Development Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance-Budqget and Actual

for the Year Ended June 30, 2612

Revenue:
CDBG Reimbursemenis
Transfer from general fund
ESG Gran{
Other State Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

CDBG Administration:
Wages & Salardes Permanent Employees
Bonus-One Time
Christmas Bonus & Longevity
FICA
Medicare
TCRS Contribution
Employee Heallh Insurance
Woaorker's Compensation
Postal Service
Printing Services
Legal Notices
(Gasoline/Fuels/Lub
Other Professional Services
Memberships & Dues
Education Seminars & Training
Travel Business Expenses
Other Confracted Services
Office Supplies & Materials
Insurance
Equipment Rental/Lease
Office Equipment

Total COBG Administration

CDBG Programs & Actlivities:
Poslal Service
Legal Notices
Admin. Charges/General Gov.,
CEASE
Central Services
Helping Hands
MATS
Youth Emergency Shelter
THPA Neighborhood Stabilization
Grants & Subsidies

Total CDBG Programs & Activities
Total Expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1, 2011

Fund balance, June 30, 2012

The noles o financial statements are an infegral pari of this statemant.

Variance

Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
$ 266,552 274,562 $ 565,991 $ 291,429
47,645 97,645 97,645 -
- 23,600 23,591 e}
357,221 357,221 51,698 (305,523}
671,418 753,028 738,925 {14,103}
45,444 58,444 55,577 867
- 610 530 80
268 268 270 (2}
3,497 3.497 3,407 90
746 {748}
6,679 6,679 8,144 {1,465}
10,722 10,722 11,257 {535)
1,525 1,525 1,528
550 550 230 320
220 220 220

- 1,650 695 955
1,650 - -
5,500 5,500 980 4,520
1,600 1,500 1,525 (25}
6,600 6,600 7,129 (529)
8,800 8,800 5,189 3611
10,000 10,000 10,000
1,236 {1,236}
94 {94}

10,000 10,000 1,776 8,224
5,000 5,000 1,319 3,681
117,955 120,565 100,104 29,461
33 (33)
2,400 {2,400}
33 {33}
6,724 {6,724}
4,482 {4,482)
8,965 {8,965)
6,723 {6,723}
4,482 {4,482)

340,221 340,221 237,339 102,882
213,242 283,242 342,821 {59,679}
553,463 623,463 514,003 9,480
671,418 753,028 714,107 38,921
- - 24,818 24,818
70,241 70,241 70,241 -
$ 70,241 70,241 $ 95,058 $ 24,818
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Narcotics Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Revenue:
Federal Reimbursements and Refunds
Governor Highway Safety Grant
OCEDTF Reimbursement
TN Meth Task Force
State Reimbursements and Refunds
Other reimbursements and refunds
Program Income

Total Revenue

Narcotics:
Wages & Salaries Permanent Employees
Overtime
Bonus-One Time
Chwristmas Bonus & Longevity
FICA
Medicare
TCRS Contribution
Employee Health [nsurance
Worker's Compensation
Clothing/Uniform/Shoes
Postal Service
Printing Services
Legal Notices
Medical Services
Telephone Services
Gther Professional Services
Repair & Maint. Vehicles
Repair & Maint. Office Equip.
Subscriptions & Books
Memberships and Dues
Education Seminars & Training
Travel Business Expenses
Other Contracted Services
Office Supptlies & Materials
General Operating Supplies
Gasoline & Diesel Fuel
Veh Parts/Qil/Fluid/Tires
Narcotics Enforcement
insurance
Equip Rental/Lease
Undercover Expenses
Office equipment 413
Office equipment 947

Total Expenditures
Net change in fund balance

Other Sources of Funds:
Operating Transfers In

Net change in fund balance
Fund batance, July 1, 2011

Fund balance, June 30, 2012

Tha noles to financial statements are an integral past of this statement.

Variance
Qriginal Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
- $ - - $ -
- 1,152 - {1,152}
7,638 6,973 {665)
- 375 375 {®)
427 427
1,722 1,722
200,609 137,609 109,451 (28,158}
200,609 146,774 118,947 {27,827}
228,783 228,783 222,869 5,914
10,000 21,165 20,866 299
- 3,000 2,650 350
2,304 2,304 2,311 (")
17,678 17,678 16,060 2,618
- 4,000 3,509 491
33,411 36,411 35,877 534
53,560 53,560 55,477 (1,917}
7,625 7,625 6,821 804
2,800 2,800 2,600 200
200 200 135 65
100 100 100
700 700 275 425
112 {112}
3,650 3,550 3,436 114
250 250 70 180
500 500 247 253
100 100 100
200 200 200
265 265 265
1,100 1,100 700 400
2,000 2,000 2,095 {95)
8,400 8,400 5,022 3,378
1,800 1,800 1,816 {16}
3,048 3,046 1,277 1,769
10,000 10,000 8,699 1,401
3,618 3618 3,287 331
- 3,557 3,010 547
9,728 9,728 10,900 (1,172)
1,987 1,087 1,087
72,000 72,000 51,057 20,243
3,000 3,000 340 2,660
- 5,048 5,048 0
478,705 508,475 465,464 43,011
(278,096) (361,701} (346,517} 15,184
278,096 353,096 353,086 -
- (8,605) 6,579 15,184
4,715 4,715 4,715 -
4,715 $ {3,890) 11,204 $ 15,184
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Statistical Information
June 30, 2012

This part of the City of Morristown’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the government's overall financial health.
Financial Trends
These schedules contain frend information to help the reader understand how the government’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.
Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's most significant local
revenue source, the property tax.
Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the government’s current
levels of outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Demaographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the government's financial activities fake place.
Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in

the government's financial report relates to the services the government provides and the activities it
performs.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Changas In Net Asseols
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{Accrual Basis)

June 39, 2012
Fiscal Year Ended
63042003 £/30/2004 6/10/2005 8130/2008 £/30/2007 63042008 /3062008 613002010 8i30/2011 302012
Expenses:
Governmental acthdbies:
Qeneral governmend 5 2467717 $ 2,750,124 s 3532804 & 3,732,690 $ 4427012 % 4,726,356 $ 4267622 $ 3535036 $ 3518,056 $ 4,267,622
PubBc safety 0,226,334 10,287 565 1553257 12,011,746 14783118 14,938,533 13,775,987 13,510,787 §3528.045 13775987
Publc wotks 5,570,400 6,537,761 5,024,191 7,884,650 §.935753 12,760,354 9,938,809 T.208 206 8372617 8939809
Partks and recreafion 1,665,313 1534531 1,469,315 1,664.17 3.107.468 2,404,471 1,793,705 1,767 692 1,505,108 1,793,705
Chivie suppot 506,273 576,028 544,308 532,178 855,948 558,723 1,638,926 583,177 663498 1638926
Economic development 596,147 285,083 1,448,415 3879932 125444 1,117,649 392,784 624,033 £.904,129 352,784
Retrea benafts - 408,347 434,580 292973 - - - 394,866 438304 309,530
Aleport 1,633,100 477,425 704,585 554,398 631368 573,847 - - - -
Transportation - - - - - - - 767273 - -
Long-tefm debl expense 164,256 396,450 217,831 337239 582295 785,032 289,717 342543 283,153 283717
Other 416,980 81,574 - - -
Fotal governmental activites expenses 23,250,590 23474933 24 920,978 31,089,823 33452305 37,861,165 32,098,550 28704813 30,513,811 32,408,080
Business-fypo achdies:
Water 3847335 4,086,405 3765578 42415% 4,486,115 5056020 5,854,982 5305837 5,846,954 5,854,082
Sewer 4,207,882 4578513 4696 085 5.170,183 5,582,683 6,760,588 8632557 7844245 9210878 9,632,557
Electric 48,187,108 47,365,032 47,493,148 53,341,801 56,800,708 61,105 276 71,977,885 63957470 73,018,022 71,077,695
Broadband System 4,176 714677 4,443,829 6,807,548 6,563,308 7030319 6,321,905 6,963,303
Storm Water 435,016 658,712 576,843 532,574 £58,713
Total busiess-iype expenses 54.823015 56,033,950 55958967 83468262 749,419,350 80265455 085,087 455 84,714 514 94,985,333 55,087,455
Tolal primary government expenses 78,073,605 79508883 §0,508.243 94,558,085 104,87§635 118,133 220 127,386,003 113,419,127 125400244 127,495,535
Program Revenues:
Governmental activities:
Charges fos senvices:
General government 202 9% 185,575 231,440 223537 557,067 409,037 i30440 280238 134,068 130,440
Pubtic safely 545293 T4 845 936,037 205216 414,861 778216 1319940 1.343,981 1.510,750 1,319,940
Public works 124,335 703,164 - 256,709 - - - - 1,031,654 1,300875
Parks and recreaton - 139562 131,693 §55.179 137,584 - - -
Cive support - - - - - - - -
Economic development - - - - - - - -
Refirea bunefls - - - - - - - -
Alrpor} - - - - - - - -
Long-lerm expense - - - - - - - -
Cperating grants and conlribufions 1,713,655 392717 - 565518 448,854 888,336 700,118 975828 1,061,878 700,118
Capdal grants and contribufions 2617657 1,361,550 - 3234328 1,702 885 1,546 826 - 660,995 - -
Total governmentaf acthifes program revenues 5203936 3,517.213 1,288,475 5,281,887 3268 321 3,622,475 2,150,498 3261,142 3823358 3451373
Busingss-type activites:
Charge for senvices:
Vvaler 4495715 4405024 4943451 5,339,101 5313578 5572994 6,602965 8,769,458 5836391 6602566
Setwet 4,540,720 4,492,542 458,153 4,749,533 5.556473 8,766,886 £.601.6%2 6,501,692 9,308,092 10,049,655
Electric 47,511,195 49414204 49,468,518 55,821,500 58631903 63,351,409 74,575,366 67,651,072 77,167.026 74575368
Breadband system - - - 162,650 2,548,590 4503872 6,815,505 6,502,002 5321898 65815505
Storm Water - - - - - 89.383 1375723 563,552 541,053 1,375,723
Cperating grents and conlributions - 378438 - - - - - - - 2067523
Capdal grants and contributons 272320 1,640,300 - - - 55500 84,631 £84.631 847,193 165,384
Total business-dype acthities program revenus 56,819.950 60,331,508 58,999,132 §6,012,824 72012574 §2,339.854 £6,055,883 88,202.417 104,122.243 101,852,122
Tolal primary government program revenue  § 52,023,863 $§  B3Bdai2y $ 60268607 $ 71284 § 75333805 £ 85862329 $ 85208381 §  Of 463559 $ 04,950,599 § 105,103455
et (expenss} revenus:
Governmental achites S {18.046654) § (19057720) § (23630561} 5 (25807936 § (30.100884) 5 (34245200) § (28956707) 5 (25443471 § (26885555 $ (2885570T)
Business-type actilies 1.996 935 25832901 3,040,165 2544562 853,244 2.074,389 BS64E67 5 3487903 0§ 6136910 0§ 6564607
Tolal pamary government net expensa $ (16049719) % (17,374428) $ (20500336} $ (23263374 § (20537.740) § (32470:891) $ (223920400 § (29.955568) § (20548845 § {22.392.040)
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Qeneral Governmental and Other Changes
inNat Assels
Governmenls! actvilies:
Proparty taxes
In-Feu taxes
Franchise taxes
Local sales tax
Alcohol baverage tax
Business and gross receipls fax
Hotel/motel tax
Use of monsy and property
frlergovernmental
Transless
Totsl governmental activifies

Business-typa acviies:
Investment earnings
Use of money and property
Franslers

Total business-type activities

Total primary gevernment

Changes in Net Assels
Governmental activties
Business-Yype achities

Total primary government

General fund
Resenved
Unseserved
Total ganerat fund

At other governmental funds
Urwresarved

Reserved

Total all sther governmental funds

Gity of Morristown, Tennessee
Changes In Net Asseis
Last Tan Fiscal Years
{Accrual Basls}
June 30, 2012

Fiscal Year Ended

£/30/2003 613072004 63012005 £/30/2006 63042007 8302008 H3W2008 6130/2010 613072011 6/30i2012
$ 8IS § 5288159 $ 8544283 5 6,959,567 $ 6,744,783 0521787 § 8766697 & 9180026 $ 9,865,189 §  5,135643

662,748 59275 72,748 92,446 65,528 35538 - - - -
813,588 520558 853208 1,006,887 732,338 25,802 784,385 644,358 400815 598,663
8,053,275 85818515 9195618 9,491,687 9,594,018 9,445,110 10,389,920 9,454,655 961§.440 10,238 619
934,567 1.008.528 1.032.688 1,076,180 1,107,005 1,138.808 J178,88 1,190,044 1,140,738 1,354,148
561,503 £51.386 784,119 881,441 943,210 2653833 947,65¢ 663,824 852,131 1,000,937
238,004 312,707 350,931 384,387 417,120 425,087 387,704 361,006 454,855 533,149
1,201,563 712,843 95,134 607,576 454,307 470,259 246632 1LH4717 870,185 979,703
1,208,281 2,148,591 4,097,107 3405260 3986312 383,497 2148284 4,188,982 5,112,921 4,711,887
- 721,591 824276 653,260 657,841 731,044 1,530,560 734,858 313.163 1532378
20,033680 21553253 23,852,078 24,558,730 24,732,571 27286413 26,350,165 21432960 29,171,448 30,159,128

254,859 - - - - - -

- - - - - 387,820 151,484 95,302 86,495 304,325
- {721,591} {824.276) (552.209) (587,841} (731.014) 1,530,560} {734,938) 1613,163) {1,532.378)
254,859 {721,501} {824,276} {653.28%) (587,841) (343,124) {1,369,076) (639,656) (726,668} {1.228.053;
$ 20283539 $ 20831862 $ 23027802 $ 23505431 $ 24044630 26953218  § 2494120 § 26793304 $ 23444780 $ 28031085
1,852,026 1595553 22151 (4,219,208} {5,458.513) {6,948.877) 2,693,183 1,989,489 24585893 1202432
2251794 1,881,700 2125880 1,591,263 {34.597) 1731206 2,236,653 2848247 5,410,252 5336614
3 4243820 $ 3457213 5 2347468 $ 872,057 $  {5493.110) (B21787) $ 4920836 4,837,736 7595135 6,539,046
2273595 1281222 1,923,010 8551476 4668443 - 2,619,057 353,457 630,664 13028600
3,114,420 9,032,750 5,254,556 4,060,987 - 2705279 3326,040 6,504,115 10075983
$ 5383415 $ 8313972 $  FAIiSes 5 52612,463 5 4609443 2705278 $  2B19067 § 3679497 3 7,444,079 § 23,104,583
{26,323) 387277 541,585
3200625 149,933 53,301 9,882 163,657 41475 3199 25473 73,843 106,353
$ 3200625 $ 144,933 5 53,34 § 8.683 $ 163,657 41476 S AL ] (8s0) § 461,120 % 647,928
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Table of General Bonded Debt with Total Assessment

and Expenditure Ratio
Ten Tax Years Ended 2012

June 30, 2012
Ratio of Bonded Ratio of Bonded

General Total Debt to Total Total Debt to Total

Tax Year Bonded Debt Assessment Assessment Expenditures Expenditures
2003 13,165,286 550,062,517 .024 1o 1 25,842,630 508101
2004 11,042,686 561,898,214 .020to 1 27,901,352 396 101
2005 12,202,286 570,401,429 021101 33,896,969 360101
2008 20,922,286 673,488,281 031to1 37,296,867 561 to 1
2007 22,538,317 704,561,094 032t 1 38,249,959 58910 1
2008 24,008,317 693,683,310 034 to1 26,991,342 889101
2009 22,521,414 728,824,170 031to 1 31,320,230 J19to1
20190 21,676,922 734,794,794 030to 1 31,217,154 694 to 1
2011 20,395,260 880,280,913 023to 1 29,439,695 B892 to 1
2012 19,054,360 864,098,668 022101 32,363,110 589 fo 1
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City of Morristown, Tennessoe
Demographic and Economic Statisfics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Education
Per Level In
Capita Years of

Fiscal Personal Personal Median Formal " School Unemployment
Year Population Income Income Age Schooling Enrollment Rate
2003 25,023 625,875,276 25012 36.6 14.0 10,440 8.5
2004 25,055 648,175,050 25,910 36.7 14.2 10,439 8.1
2005 25,402 661,950,718 26,059 36.9 14.3 10,519 6.4
2006 25,716 674,119,224 26,214 40.0 14.1 10,513 48
2007 25,686 673,075,944 26,204 41.2 14.0 10,613 57
2008 26,419 695,823,622 26,338 38.0 13.4 10,398 7.2
2009 25,800 696,780,600 27,007 36.8 13.3 10,079 13.48
2010 28,054 896,633,804 31,961 37.3 13 9,632 11.2
2041 29,137 548,154,381 18,813 38.2 12 10,972 i1.8
2012 29,369 579,097,942 19,718 35.88 13.74 9,852 13.53
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City of Morristown
Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Function

Public Safety

Police:
Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 i 1 1 1
Patrol units 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48
Fire stations 5 4 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6
Sanitation
Collection trucks 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 4 4 4
Highways and streets
Street (miles) 228 237 240 241 263 283 320 320 320 320
Culture and recreation
Parks acreage 249 257 232 257 259 259 264 264 264 264
Parks 14 14 15 15 16 16 16 16 16 16
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Schedule of Sewer Utility Rates and Nwinber of Customers
Year Ended June 30, 2012

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

2003
Sewer Rate
Inside $ 2.90
Outside 5.80
Customers
Inside 10,067
Qutside 318

$ 295 §$ 300 $ 300 $365 $ 420 $ 45 $ 459 §$ 496 8.11
5.90 6.00 6.00 7.30 8.40 9.18 9.18 9.92 16.22

10,144 10,230 10,230 10,578 10,578 11,523 11,523 11,627 11,618
39 438 438 438 438 109 109 104 105
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City of Morristown Tennesses
Schedule of Water Rates and Number of Customers
Year Ended June 30, 2012

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Inside City Rate

Customer charge per month 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 - -
Commaodity charge (per 1,000 gallons)
First 25,000 gallons - - - - - - - - 1.25 1.25
Over 25,000 gallons - - - - - - - - 1.10 1.10
First 50,000 gallons 2.05 2.05 2.05 1.90 1.55 1.55 1.55 1.55 nfa nia
Next 50,000 gallons 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.65 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 nfa nia
Over 100,000 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.45 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10 nia n/a
Minimum bill:
5/8" meler 8.75 8.75 8.75 8.45 7.75 7.75 7.75 7.75 6.50 6.50
3/4" meter 9.25 9.25 9.25 8.95 8.25 8.25 8.25 8.25 7.00 7.00
1" meter 10.00  10.00 10.00 8.70 9.25 9.25 9.25 9.25 8.00 8.00
1 1/2" meter 11.50 1150 1150 11.20 1075 1075 1075 1075 9.50 9.50
2" meter 16.00 18,00 1600 1570 1525 1525 1525 1525 14.00 14.00
3" meter 61.00 61.00 6100 60.70 52.00 5200 5200 5200 4950 49.50
4" meter 71.00 7100 7100 7070 7000 76.00 70.00 70.00 63.00 83.00
6" meter 101.00 101.00 1041.00 100.70 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 9450 94.50
8" meter 11430 11430 114.30 - - - - - - -
Outside City rates:
Customer charge per month 4.65 465 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 465 4.65 4.65 4,65
Commodity charge (per 1,000 gallons)
Fiest 25,000 gallons - - - - - - - - 2.50 2.50
Over 25,000 gallons - - - - - - - - 2,20 2.20
First 50,000 gallons 4,10 4.10 410 3.80 3.10 3.10 3.10 3.10 nfa nfa
Next 50,000 gallons 3.60 3.60 3.60 3.30 260 2.60 2.80 260 nfa nfa
Over 100,000 galions 3.20 3.20 3.20 2.80 2,20 2.20 2,20 220 nfa nfa
Minimum bill:
5/8" meter 12856 1285 1285 1225 10.85 1085 1085 1085 9.00 9.00
3/4" meter 1336 1335 1335 1275 1135 1135 11356 11.35 9.50 9.50
1" meter i4.10 1410 4440 1350 1240 1240 12106 1210 1050 10.50
1 1/2" mefer 1660 1560 1560 1500 1360 1360 1360 1360 1200 1200
2" meter 20.10 2010 2010 1950 1810 1810 1810 18.10 1650  16.50
3" meter 65.10 65.10 6510 64.50 63.10 6310 6310 63.1¢ 52.00 52.00
4" meter 7540 7510 7540 Y450 7310 7310 7310 7310 8550 6550
6" meter 105.10 105.10 105.10 104.50 103.10 103.10 10310 103.10 97.00 97.00
8" meter 118.40 118.40 118.40 - - - - - - -
Monthly fire protection service charge:
4" 25.00 2500 2500 2500 2500 2500 2500 2500 25.00 25.00
g" 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 4000 4000 40.00 40.00  40.00
8" 50.00 50.00 50.00 5000 5000 5000 5000 50.00 5000 50.00
10" 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
i2" 126.00 125.00 125,00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00

Number of Customers
12,553 12,501 12,567 12,506 12,937 12,684 12517 12453 12363 12,164
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City of Morristown Tennessee

Schedule of Monthly Broadband Rates {Last Seven Years)
Year Ended June 30, 2012

2012 2011 2019 2009 2008 2007 2008
Standard Cable:
Expanded basic 46.95 46.95 46.95 41.95 41.95 41,95 41.95
Digital basic 54.95 54.95 54.95 49.95 49.95 49.95 49.95
Digital basic + 1 63.95 63.95 63.95 59.95 59.95 59.95 59.95
Digital basic + 2 71.95 71.95 71.95 67.95 67.95 67.95 67.95
Digital basic + 4 84.95 84.95 84.95 80.95 80.95 80.95 80.95
Premium channels 0.95-12.85 0.95-12.95 8.95-12.95 0.95-11.95 0.95-11.85 9.95-11.95 8.95-11.95
Internet:
Residential
Tier 1 34.95 34.95 34.95 29.95 29.95 29.95 29.95
Tier 2 39.95 39.95 39.95 39.95 39.95 39.95 39.95
Tier 3 44.95 58.95 59.95 59.95 59.95 59.95 58.95
Tier 4 74.95 99.95 99.95 99.85 99.95 99.95 99.95
Tier 5 99.95-199.95 159.95 159.95 - - - -
Commercial
Tier 1 44.95 4495 44 95 39.95 39.95 39.85 39.95
Tier 2 74.95 74.95 74.95 74.95 74.95 74.95 74.95
Tier 3 99.95 99.95 99.95 99.95 99.95 99.95 98.85
Tier 4 149.95 149.95 149.95 149,95 149.95 149.95 149.85
Tier 5 199.95 109.85 199.95 199.95 199.95 - -
Telephone:
Residential
Basic Pack 2295 22.95 22,95 2295 22.95 22.95 22.95
Preferred Pack 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 27.95
Additional services 3.75-11.95 3.75-895 3.75-8.95 375885 3.75-895 3.75-8.95 6.95-885
Long distance per minute 0.05 0.05 0.08 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05
Commercial
Access line 2595 25.85 25.95 25.95 25.95 25.85 26.95
Business local telephone service 36.95 36.95 38.95 36.95 36.95 36.95 39.95
Additional services 7.95-27.95 £.95-2595 6.95-25.95 6.95-25.95 6.95-25.95 6.95-25.95 6.95-7.95
Long distance rate per minute 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05

Note: The Broadband System began operations in 2006.
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City of Morristown Tennessee
Schedule of Unaccounted For Water
Year Ended June 30, 2012

(all amounts in gallons})

oo W

ZEZErrRe«"™ITomm
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All amounts included in this schedule are supported by documentation on file at the Water System. If no support

Water Treated and Preduced

Water Pumped (potable)

Water Purchased
Total Water Treated and Purchased
{Sum Lines B and C)

Accounted For Water

Water Sold

Metered for Consumption (in house usage)}

Fire Department Usage

Flushing

Tank Cleaning/Filling

Street Cleaning

Bulk Sales

Water Bill Adjustments
Total Accounted For Water
{Sum Lines F through M)
Unaccounted For Water
{Line D minus Line N}
Percent Unaccounted For Water
(Line O divided by Line D times 100)

Other (explain)

3,211,089,000
0

2,858,683,200
33,081,500

SO0 O0

is on fite for a line item or if the line item is not applicable, a "0" is shown.

3,211,089,000

2,892,664,700

318,424,300

na

9.92%
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City of Morristown, Tehnessee
Principal Property Taxpayers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago
June 30, 2012

2012 2003
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Value Value Value
Mahie 33,855,435 1 3.85% 24,158,164 1 4.30%
CBL Morristown Ltd 26,549 500 2 3.02% 9,687 200 3 1.72%
Vifan 25,373,341 3 2.88% 9,179,021 5 163%
Otics USA, Inc. 19,480,348 4 2.21%
Tuff Torg Corp 16,225,718 5 1.84% 8,069,669 8 1.44%
Toyoda-TRWIJTEKT 15,201,476 6 1.73% 17,171,255 2 3.06%
M-H Hospital 14,801,900 7 1.68%
Lear Corporation 11,519,087 8 1.31% 5,962 063 9 1.06%
Team Technologies 11,095,226 9 1.26%
Meritor/Rockwell 6,444 992 10 0.73% 6,524,363 8 1.16%
Berkiine/TBC 9,365,517 4 167%
Bellsouth 7,969,642 7 1.42%
Shelby Williams 4,932,541 0 0.88%
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Ratios of Qutstanding Debt by Type, L.ast Ten Fiscal Years

June 30, 2012

Govemmental  Business-type

Activities Activities

General Revenue Total Percentage of
Fiscal Per Capita  Obligation Bonded Primary Personal
Yeat Population  Income Bonds Debt Government Income Per Capita
2003 25,023 25,012 13,155,286 15,204,305 28,359,591 0.09% $1,133.34
2004 25,055 25,910 11,042,686 15,201,571 26,244,257 0.10% $1,047.47
2005 25,402 26,059 12,202,286 35,023,408 47,225,694 0.06% $1,859.13
2006 25,716 26,214 20,922,286 48,548,085 69,470,371 0.04% $2,701.45
2007 25,686 26,204 22,538,317 48,583,584 71,121,901 0.04% $2,768.90
2008 26,419 26,338 24,008,317 57,350,826 81,359,143 0.03% $3,079.57
2009 25,800 27,007 22,521,414 62,632,314 85,153,728 0.03% $3300.53
2010 25,800 27,007 21,676,922 70,536,488 92,213,410 0.03% $3574.106
2011 29,137 18,813 20,395,260 67,736,119 88,131,379 0.02% $3,024.72
2012 29,369 19,718 19,054,360 66,678,349 85,732,709 0.02% $2919.16
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding, Last Ten Fiscal Years

June 30, 2012
Percent of Net
Actual Value Genezal General Obligation  Bonded

Fiscal of Taxable Bonded Debt to Debt
Year  Population Property Debt Actual Value Per Capita
2003 25,023 1,653,214,110 13,155,286 0.80% 526
2004 25,055 1,683,016,247 11,042,686 0.66% 441
2005 25,402 1,706,865,190 12,202,286 0.71% 480
2006 25,716 2,030,459,639 20,922,286 1.03% 814
2007 25,686 2,130,508,894 22,538,317 1.06% 877
2008 26,419 2,257,282,643 24,008,317 1.06% 909
2009 25,800 2,377,490,324 22,521,414 0.95% 873
2010 25,800 2,776,600,762 21,676,922 0.78% 840
2011 29,137 2,729,853,556 20,395,260 0.75% 700
2012 29,369 2,722,855,361 19,054,360 0.70% 649
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

City Government Emplovees by Function/Program
June 30, 2012

Employees as of June 30
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Function/Program

General government

Mayor and Council 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
City Administration & Staff 3 3 3 3 3 4 4
Finance 6 6 5 7 7 7 7
Purchasing 1 1 | | 1 i 1
Information Technology 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Human Resources 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Legal Services 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Planning 6.3 6.3 73 7.3 8.4 8.4 7.5
Engineering 3.1 3.1 33 33 3.9 34 3.37
Inspections 4 4 5 5 5 5 5
Police
Supervision 6 6 5 5 5 5 5
Patrol 64 63 67 67 70 63 62
Investigations 15 15 15 15 13 13 14
Codes Enforcement i 1 1 1 1 I 1
Vice I 1 1 1 1 i 1
Narcotics 5 5 5 5 4 4 4
Fire
Supervision 6 6 6 6 4 4
Firefighting 79 81 84 84 84 87 86
Prevention & Inspection 1 i 2 2 2 1 1
Public Works
Supervision 1.83 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5
Buildings & Grounds 2 2 2 2 2 6 8
Equipment Shop 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Repairs & Maintenance 9 9 10 10 16 10 10
Street Lights & Signs 1 1 2 2 2 2 2
Brush & Snow 10.7 9 13 13 13 14 13
Communication Shop 1.65 2 2 2 2 2 2
Storms Drains & Ways 0 0 0 0 0 4 4
Street Cleaning 0 0 0 0 0 2 2
Parks and Recreation 17 17 20 20 20 21 20
Sewer {798 269 259 259 257 227 22625
Storm Water 5.44 7.2 7 7 6.5 0 0
Solid Waste 12 12 I3 13 I3 i3 13
Total 300 310 327 329 330 326 322

Note: This information was not available for years prior to 2006.
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CRAINE, THOMPSON, & JONES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
226 WEST FIRST NORTH STREET
P.O. Box 1779
SUITE 300, MILLENNIUM SQUARE
MORRISTOWN, TENNESSEE 37816-1779
423-586-7650

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Morristown, Tennessee

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Morristown, Tennessee, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City of Morristown, Tennessee's basic financial statements
and have issued our report thereon dated November 25, 2012. Our report includes a reference to other auditors.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited the financial statements of Morristown Ultility
Commission as described in our report on City of Morristown, Tennessee's financial statements. This report does
not include the results of the other auditors® testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and
other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Conirol Over Financial Reporting

Management of City of Morristown, Tennessee, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Morristown,
Tennessee’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of City of Morristown, Tennessee's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Morristown, Tennessee's internal control over
financial reporting. i

A deficiency in internal confrof exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and cotrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting. The findings are numbered 12-1 through 12-4. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

JAMES W, CRAINE, CPA THOMAS M. JONES, CPA
GLENN B. THOMPSON, CPA, CFFP, PFS HIRAM H. JONES, CPA

MIRA J. CRAINE, CPA TERRY M. WINSTEAD, CPA



Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than
a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by
the City of Morristown, Tennessee's internal control.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Morristown, Tennessee’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

City of Morristown, Tennessee’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit City of Morristown, Tennessee’s response and,
accordingly, we exprass no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the entity,
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Owlmu»), lj/wﬂpm) o gmu P,é .
Morristown, Tennessee /
November 25, 2012
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CRAINE, THOMPSON, & JONES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
2285 WEST FIRST NORTH STREET
P.O. Box 1779
SUITE 300, MILLENNIUM SQUARE
MORRISTOWN, TENNESSEE 37816-1779
423-586-7650

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIA)L EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Morristown, Tennessee

Compliance

We have audited City of Morristown, Tennessee’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of City of Morristown, Tennessee's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. City of
Morristown, Tennessee's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of City of Morristown,
Tennessee’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on City of Morristown, Tennessee’s
compliance based on our audit. :

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Morristown, Tennessee’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Cur audit does not provide a legal
determination of City of Morristown, Tennessee’s compliance with these reguirements.

in our opinion, City of Morristown, Tennessee, complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the
year ended June 30, 2012.

internal Control over Compliance

Management of City of Morristown, Tennessee, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
controt over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Morristown, Tennessee’s internal control
over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of City of Morristown, Tennessee’s internal control over compliance.

JAMES W, CRAINE, CPA THOoMAS M. JONES, CPA
GLENN B. THOMPSON, CPA, CFP, PFS HirAM H. JONES, CPA
MIRA J, CRAINE, CPA TERRY M. WINSTEAD, CPA



Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
Page 2

A deficiency in infernal controf over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal .course of performing their assigned functions, fo
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal conirol over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis.

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the entity,
federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Cans Hompoorrd O onm, R

Morristown, Tennessee
November 25, 2012
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2012

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: unqualified
Internat control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses ldentified? Yes
Significant deficiency identified? None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weaknesses identified? no
Significant deficiency identified? none reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: unqualified

Any audit findings disclosead that are required to be reported in
accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-1337 no

tdentification of major programs:

US Department of Housing and Urban Development — CDBG 14.218
Dollar threshold used fo distinguish between Type A and B programs $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee no

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings:

Finding 12-1

Condition: The City of Morristown should use a uniform system of accounting for its capital assets that is
designed specifically for this purpose.

Criteria: Capital assets represent a significant investment of taxpayer funds by the City and every effort should be
made to fully account for and protect this investment.

Cause of condition: The City did implement the use of sofiware designed specifically to account for its property
and equipment capital assets. A substantial portion of infrastructure assets was still being accounted for through
the use of an excel spreadsheet at June 30, 2012,

Recommendation: The City should transfer the assets being accounted for on the spreadsheet to the software
being used to account for the rest of capital assets.

Management’'s response: Management agrees with the finding. As stated, a new software program was
implemented to account for fixed assets and depreciation to address a prior year finding. During the conversion
of spreadsheets to the new program, assets in use that have not been on our financial statements previously
were included. Going forward, this new program should resolve this issue and procedures will be developed to
ensure all future assets will be accounted for correctly.
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Section Il - Financial Statement Findings: (cont)

Finding 12-2

Condition: A significant portion of the City’s supplies inventories is not being adequately protected from weather
and secured against theft.

Criteria: In order to adequately store and protect inventory, a facility that is under roof and securely locked should
be in use.

Cause of condition: The facility being used for the storage of a significant portion of the City’s supplies inventory is
open air and behind a chain link fence secured with a gate.

Recommendation: The City should evaluate its inventory storage space and make a determination as to the
improvements that need to be made to improve the space. This will assist in the organization of inventory as well.

Management's response: Management addressed the supplies inventory finding last year which dealt with
organization and labeling supplies. We understand the importance of protecting assets that are sensitive to
weather conditions and will address this finding before the close of 2013.

Finding 12-3

Condition: All relevant documents that are necessary to evaluate payment requests are not being submitted to the
finance department for review.

Criteria: In order to document the foflowing of purchasing, all relevant documentation shouid be presented to the
finance department for its review and approval of transactions.

Cause of condition: During our testing of fravel expenditures we noted that several statements from hotels did not
accompany travel authorizations and reimbursements for travel. We also noted that other types of documentation
had been omitted.

Recommendation: The City should change its procedures to require that copies of all invoices and other
documents should be presented to the finance department for their review and payment.

Management's response: Management agrees with the finding and are developing procedures for proper
document retention. Once developed, staff will be trained on implementing those procedures.

Finding 12-4

Condition; The City of Morristown does not have a formal system of accounting and administrative controls in
place to govern its operations.

Criteria: In order for the City to operate efficiently and adequately safeguard its assets, it should have in place a
formal system of administrative and accounting controls.

Cause of condition: Although the City does operate under some conirols, there is no documentation of exactly
what the City's control sfructure is and what its adminisirative controls are.

Recommendation: The City should evaluate its control structure, determine the adequacy of its policies and
procedures, make any necessary improvements, and document exactly what the policies and procedures actuaily
are.

Management's response: Management agrees with the finding. Adding additional personnel at the end of 2012
will allow segregation of duties that could not have been done before. Written procedures wilt be developed for
various processes in the Finance Department.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Disposition of Prior Year Findings
June 30, 2011
FYE 6/30/2009
Finding 1: Loan from Sewer Fund to Storm Water Fund
This condition was resolved at June 30, 2012.
FYE 6/30/2010
Finding 1: The auditor prepared the financial statements.
This condition still existed at June 30, 2012.
Finding 2: Insufficient segregation of duties exists.
This condition still existed at June 30, 2012,
Finding 5: There are no formal written accounting policies and procedures.
This condition still existed at June 30, 2012,
EYE 6/30/2011
Finding 1: The storage of physical inventories of supplies and materials is inadequate.
This condition was resolved at June 30, 2012.
Finding 2: Travel policies are not consistent across alf of the departments of the City.

This condition was resolved at June 30, 2012,
Finding 3: Procedures for the issuance of purchase orders need to he improved.
This condition still existed at June 30, 2012.
Finding 4. The City’s accounting system for its capital assets is not sufficient for the size of the organization it has

become.
This condition still existed at June 30, 2012.

116




	Letter of Transmittal
	List of City Officials
	Independent Auditor's Report
	Management's Discussion and Analysis
	Government-wide Statement of Net Assets
	Government-wide Statement of Activities
	Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
	Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds
	Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
	Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund
	Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Solid Waste Fund
	Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds
	Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Funds
	Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
	Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	RSI - Schedule of Funding Progress - City Retirement Plan
	Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
	Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
	Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Community Development Fund
	Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Narcotics Fund
	Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
	Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards
	Explanation of Statistical Section
	Net Assets by Component
	Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds
	Changes in Net Assets
	Fund Balance of Governmental Funds
	Government Activities Revenue by Source
	General Bonded Debt Ratios
	Property Tax Levies and Collections
	Principal Employers
	Assessed and Estimated Values of Taxable Properties
	Operating Indicators by Function
	Demographic and Economic Statistics
	Capital Asset Statistics by Function
	Schedules of Utility Rates
	Schedule of Unaccounted For Water
	Principal Property Taxpayers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago
	Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type, Last Ten Fiscal Years
	Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding, Last Ten Fiscal Years
	City Government Employees by Function/Program
	Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards
	Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance With Requirements That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133
	Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
	Disposition of Prior Year Findings

